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AUDITOR/RECORDER Sioux City, Towa 51101
Of Woodbury County
PATRICK E GILL Phone (712) 279-6702

Fax (712) 279-6629

Auditor/Recorder

December 22, 2008

Members of the Board of Supervisors and the
Citizens of the County of Woodbury, lowa:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County of Woodbury, lowa, for the
year ended June 30, 2008, is hereby submitied. Responsibility for both the accuracy of
the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the County. To the best of cur knowledge and belief, the
enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner that
presents fairly the financial position and results of operations of the County. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the County’s
financial activities have been included.

This comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four (4) sections:
introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section, which is
unaudited, includes this letter of fransmittal, the County’s organizational chart and a fist
of the principal elected and appointed officials. The financial section includes the
independent auditors’ report on the basic financial statements, management's
discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements, required supplementary
information, and the combining of individual fund statements and schedules. The
statistical section, which is unaudited, includes selected financial and demographic
information, generally presented on a multi-year basis.

The County is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the
provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget's Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.  Information related to this single audit, including a schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, schedule of findings and questioned costs, and the
independent auditors’ reports on compliance and on internal control over financial
reporting and on compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and
internat control over compliance, are included in the singie audit section of this report.

The County of Woodbury, lowa, is a municipal corporation governed by an elected five-
member board known as the Board of Supervisors. [n addition to the Board of
Supervisers, there are four other elected officials, the County Atforney, the County
Auditor & Recorder, the County Sheriff, and the County Treasurer. The County provides



a full range of services. These services include [aw enforcement, heaith and social
services, parks and cultural activities, planning and zoning, construction and
maintenance of secondary roads, education and general administrative services. As
required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements
present the County of Woodbury, lowa, (the primary government) and its component
units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the primary government is
financially accountable. The County has one discretely presented component unit,
Siouxland District Health.

This report includes all the funds of the County. included in the Public Safety and Legal
Services function are the expenses of the offices of the County Attorney, the County
Sheriff, the Medical Examiner and Emergency Services. Included in the Physical Health
and Social Services function are Siouxland District Health Department, General Relief
. Department, the Department of Human Services and Veterans Affairs Department.
Included in the County Environment and Education function are the expenses of the
Woodbury County Conservation Commission, Planning and Zoning Department, Soil
Conservation and Weed Eradication. Included in the Roads and Transportation function
are the expenses of the Secondary Roads Division. Included in the Government
Services to Residents function are the expenses for County Recorder's Department,
Motor Vehicle Department, the Elections Department and included in the Administration
and Non-program functions are the expenses for the County Treasurer’s Tax Division,
the Auditor's Department, the Human Resources Department, the Communications
Center and the Woodbury County Information and Communication Commission.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of
the primary government's operations and are included as part of the primary
government. The County reports eleven drainage districts as blended component units.
Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the
combined financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
primary government and to differentiate their financial position, resuits of operations and
cash flows from those of the primary government.

Economic Condition and Outlook

Location and Population: The County of Woodbury, lowa, is located in northwest lowa
bounded on the west by the Missouri River which also serves as the boundary and a
point of intersection for three states, lowa, Nebraska, and South Dakota. Woodbury
County borders Plymouth and Cherokee Counties to the north, Ida County to the east
and Monona County to the south. The County of Woodbury’s, U.S. Census Bureau’s
Juiy 1, 2007 estimated population was 102,287,

Employment Data: The County of Woodbury, lowa, had a 3.8% unemployment rate
and 52,300 employed as of October 2008.

Major Projects and Developments: There have heen a significant number of projects
and events that have occurred from 1998 through 2008 that have affected the economic
outlook for the County of Woodbury, lowa:

Education: On August 11, 1998, the residents of thé County of Woodbury,
lowa, passed a schools infrastructure focal option sales and service tax that
provides local school districts with over $10,000,000 of funds annually through



September 30, 2008 to build new and repair existing infrastructure. This tax was
re-approved by Woodbury County Voters in August of 2005 to extend through

2018.

In the Sioux City Community School District, construction of two new middle
schools was completed in 2002 and 2004 and extensive renovation of another
was completed in 2002, Construction of two elementary schools, one to replace
the oldest active school building in lowa, is now complete and one opened in the
fall of 2006 and another in 2007.

The Sergeant Bluff/Luton Community School District has experienced
phenomenal growth and continues to keep pace with its building needs.

There are two, liberal arts schools, Briar Cliff University and Morningside College
and a Community College, Western lowa Tech. located in Sioux City.

In March of 2005, the voters of the Western lowa Tech Community College Area
Xl District approved an instructional equipment levy for ten years.

Retail/Service: Retail activity in the County of Woodbury continues to be strong
and Sioux City continues to establish itself as a regional retail center. The
Southern Hills Mall, containing 750,000 square feet of retail space has been an
established regional shopping center for the last twenty years. Recently, the
l.akeport Commons and Sunnybrook Plaza developments have added an
additional 1.1 million square feet of adjacent retail space. Nearby, the Singing
Hills development area features banking, auto dealerships, additional retaif
outlets and restaurants.

Sioux Gateway Airport is currently serviced by Mesaba Airlines operating as
Northwest Airlink, a business partner of Northwest Airlines, for flights out of and
into Sioux City. Northwest Airlines added 300 jobs by opening a Northwest
Airlines Reservation Center in the former JC Penney’s Buiiding.

Development in the central business district, along Hamilton Boulevard and Floyd
Boulevard, in the stockyards district and along the Missouri Riverfront continues
at an aggressive rate, featuring hotel renovations and construction and the
opening of several new restaurants and entertainment venues.

The City of Sergeant Bluff is a vibrant community bordering southern Sioux City
and is experiencing rapid growth in both retail and residential areas.

Industrial and Business Parks: There are several industrial and business
parks in the fri-state area that continue to see growth and new ones are being

developed.

The Airport Business Park saw Qwest open a sales and service call center in the
Expedition Business Center. North Sioux City and Dakota Dunes in South
Dakota continue to add to their industrial and business parks to further enhance
the economic vitality of the tri-state area.



Total Market Valuation: An important economic indicator is the trend of market
valuations. The assessed value of real property in the County of Woodbury, lowa, grew
from $3,526,276,526 in fiscal year 1998-99 to $4,891,460,492 in fiscal year 2007-2008.
That represents a growth of 39% over the {en-year period.

Transportation: A major four-lane limited access by-pass connects U.S. Highway 75
and U.S. Highway 20. It provides a four-fane artery from the northeast corner of Sioux
City proceeding south, intersecting with U.S. 20, continuing south and looping around to
the west and intersecting with Interstate 29 and continuing across the Missouri River into
Nebraska. This route opens a huge area for further development. Woodbury County
continues to push for the improvement of U.S. 20 to a four lane highway and U.S. 60
continues to see major improvements that will provide an efficient transportation route to
the Twin Cities of Minnesota.

Conclusion: Despite economic concemns nationally, the eccnomic indicators for the
County of Woodbury, lowa, appear to be strong. Building and construction activity are
expected to remain stable and the employment picture also remains bright. Economic
development efforts continue to focus on the diversification of the local economy while
taking advantage of its tri-state location along the Missouri River.

Major Initiatives

The Last Five Years: The County has completed several major projects in the last five
years. Recent Courthouse projects include a major reconstruction effort to repair
foundation walls in the lower level of the Courthouse, the replacement of the Courthouse
freight elevator, the eighth floor was returned to a meeting room, restoration of the
courtrooms and the Board of Supervisors meeting room and the installation of a new
roof. The County Jail Facility was recently altered to implement a variance that
increased its capacity and will save the county substantial transportation costs. The
County continues to maintain and improve a website to provide access to users and to
educate the public about services offered.

For the Future: In order to be proactive in the area of economic development, the
County has established an economic development department and continues o develop
a comprehensive plan to assure responsible growth in the rural area of the County.

The Board of Supervisors and Sheriff continue fo monitor the county jail. They have
been successful in identifying and implementing efforts to reduce the pressure on the jail
in the short-term and continue pfanning a long-term solution.

Financial Information

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected
from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that: (1) the cost of a control shoutd not exceed
the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.



Single Audit: As a recipient of federal, state and local financial assistance, the County
is also responstble for ensuring that adequate internal control structures are in place to
ensure and document compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to these
programs.  This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by

management of the County.

As part of the County's single audit, described earlier, tests were made to determine the
adeguacy of the internal control structure, including those related fo federal awards, as
well as {o determine that the County has complied with applicable faws and regulations.

Budgeting Controls: [n addition, the County maintains extensive budgetary controls.
The objective of these controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied
in the annual appropriated budget approved by the County Board of Supervisors.
Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, capital projects fund, and the debt
service fund are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary
control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated
amount) is at the total program service area level. The County also maintains budgetary
control beyond the State required program service area level at the major object of
expenditure basis within each County department.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis: GAAP requires that management provide a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.
Woodbury County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

General Fund Balance: The unreserved fund balance of the general fund at the end of
the 2007-2008 fiscal year balance of the general fund is $6,947,033. The unreserved
fund provides the County with a fund balance that meets cash flow needs prior to the
collection of property taxes and significantly reduces the likelihood of the County
entering the short-term debt market to pay for current operating expenditures. The
amount of the unreserved fund balance of the general fund meets the criteria of the
County Auditor’s office’s minimum requirement,

Debt Administration: On June 30, 2008, the County had four general obligation debt
issues outstanding. The County issued $800,000 in capital loan notes in 2002, 2003,
2004, 2006 and 2008 for capital projects. The balance at fiscal year end was $320,000
for the 2002 note, $320,000 for the 2004 note, $480,000 for the 2006 note and $800,000
for the 2008 note. Property tax dollars are being used {o fund these expenditures.

The County maintains an “A” rating from Standard & Poor's and an “A" rating from
Moody's for general obligation debt.

Under state statutes, the County’s general obligation bond issuances are subject to a
legal limitation based on 5% of its gross assessed valuation. As of June 30, 2008, the
County’s general obligation indebtedness of $1,920,000 was well befow the legal limit of
$244,573,025 and debt per capita equaled $18.65.

Cash Management: Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand
deposits, certificates of deposit, obligations of the U.S. Treasury, and obligations



guaranteed by the United States or its agencies. The average vield on investments was
3.76%. The County earned interest revenue in governmentat funds of $1,040,731 on all

invesiments for the year ended June 30, 2008.

The County's investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining
a competitive yield on its porifolio. Accordingly, deposits were insured by federal
depository insurance or covered by the state’s sinking fund. The majority of County
investments during the year ended at June 30, 2008, are classified in the category of
lowest risk as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Risk Management: The County's liability, property and worker’s compensation claims,
insurance and administration program is accounted for in the Internal Service Fund. The
program involves risk control techniques and provides to meet loss situations, which do
occur, using a blend of internal and external resources. A claims retention program in
which an assumption of appropriate deductibles is made represents internal funding of
losses. During the fiscal year 2008, the deductible for each liability and property claim
was $250,000 and for each worker compensation claim was $250,000. External funding
involves the purchase of insurance to finance those losses which the County cannot
comfortably retain itself. [ndividual claims in excess of the deductible are insured up to
$9,750,000 for fiability, replacement costs up to $64,118,592 for property, and statutory
amounts for worker's compensation. The goais of the current risk management program
are to lower long-term costs and to reduce dependence on the insurance market, which
tessens the effect of annual rate increases and/or capacity crunches.

Other Information

Independent Audit: State statutes require an annual audit by the Auditor of the State
or by a certified public accountant. The County has complied with this requirement by
contract with Williams & Company, P.C. to provide an independent audit. In addition to
meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was also designed to meet
the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act and the related U.S. Office of
Management and Budget's Circular A-133. The auditors’ report on the basic financial
statements, the required supplementary information, and the combining and individual
fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The
independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable
basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the basic financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. The auditors’ reports related specifically to the Single
Audit are included in the Single Audit section.

Awards: The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County of Woodbury, lowa,
for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2007. This was the eighth year that the government has received this prestigious award.
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government published an easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR. . This report satisfied both the U.S. GAAP and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements
and we are submitting it fo the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.



Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

County of Woodbury
lowa

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2007

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
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VISION STATEMENT

WOODBURY COUNTY WILL BE A
LEADER IN PROVIDING
CUSTOMER-FRIENDLY SERVICE
THROUGH INNOVATIVE
TECHNOLOGY, CONTINUOUS
PROCESS IMPROVEMENT AND
COLLABORATIVE EFFORTS

IN THE TRI-STATE AREA
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Suite 700 Terra Centre
600 Fourth Street

WILLIAMS

& COMPANY-rc Sioux City, IA 51102-0298

Certified Public Accountants Phone (712) 252-5337

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Supervisors
Woodbury County, lowa

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
the aggregate remaining fund information and the discretely presented component unit of WOCDBURY
COUNTY, IOWA (the County) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise
the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the management of the County. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accerdance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining
fund information and the component unit of Woodbury County, lowa as of June 30, 2008, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then
ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 22,
2008 on our consideration of Woodbury County, lowa's internal contral over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of

our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information are not required parts
of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding methods of measurement and presentation of the reguired
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements. We previously audited, in accordance with the
standards referred to in the second paragraph of this report, the financial statements for the three years
ended June 30, 2007 (which are not presented herein) and expressed unqualified opinions on those
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financial statements. The accompanying Introductory Section and Statistical Information is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a reguired part of the financial statements of Woodbury County
fowa. Such information has not been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
hasic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no apinion on it.

The accompanying other supplementary information, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards which is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, are
presented for purposes of additionat analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

ZAJL.LMA-M\JD +CMW,P-C- )

Certified Public Accountants

Sioux City, lowa
December 22, 2008 -
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the County of Woodbury, lowa, (the County) we offer readers of
the County’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. We encourage readers
to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information
that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 3-9 of
this report.

Financial Highlights

* The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $84,351,829 (net assets). Of this amouni, $17,269,334 (unrestricted
net assets) may be used to meet the County's ongoing obligations {o citizens and
creditors.

» The County’s total net assets increased by $2,009,424. The largest factor in the
increase in fund balance was the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the current period. In fiscal year 2008 that amount was $1,103,402.

+ As of the close of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $16,640,918, an increase of $1,449,537 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 92% of this total amount,
$15,388,487, is available for spending at the County's discretion (unreserved fund
balance).

+ At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the genreral fund
was $6,947,033, or 27% of total general fund expenditures.

« The County's total debt increased by $240,000 (14%) during the current fiscal year.
The key factor in this increase was that $800,000 of new debt was issued during
the year.,

QOverview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended fo serve as an introduction to the County's
basic financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements,
and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements
are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assefs presents information on all of the County's assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as nef assefs. Over time,
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets

changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing
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of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected
taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of
their costs through users fees and charges (business-fype activities). The
governmental activities of the County include law enforcement, health and social
services, parks and cultural activities, planning and zoning, construction and
maintenance of secondary roads, education and general administrative services. The
County has no business type activities.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the County itself (known as
the primary government), but also a legally separate health organization for which the
County is financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is
reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 26-28 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting
to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the
same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the County's near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains twenty-three individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the
general fund, mental services fund, rural services fund, secondary roads fund, and the
debt service fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other
eighteen governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
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individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining staterments elsewhere in this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the generai fund to demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 29-34 of this
report,

Proprietary funds. The Counly maintains one proprietary fund. Infernal service funds
are an accounting device used to accumulate and ailocate costs internally among the
County's various functions. The County uses an internal service fund to account for its
self-insured health, general liability, and workers compensation insurance funds.
Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statemenis can be found on pages 35-37 of this
report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used fo account for resources held in an agency
or custodial capacity for others. Fiduciary funds are nof reflected in the government-
wide financial statement because the resources of those funds are nof available to
support the County’s own programs. The accounting used for these fiduciary funds is
concentrated on the net assets of the funds due to their agency nature.

The hasic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 38 of this report.

Component unit. As discussed earlier, Sicuxland District Health is a component unit
of the County. The component unit financial statements can be found on pages 74-75

of this repart.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statemenis. The notes fo the financial statements can be found on pages 39-
50 of this report.

Other information. In addition fo the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning
the County’s actual results in comparison to their original and amended budgets.
Required supplementary information can be found on pages 51-52 of this report.

The combining statemenis referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor
governmental funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on

pages 53-73 of this report.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a County’s
financial position. In the case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by $84,351,829
at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the County’s net assets (80%) reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, and equipment), less any related
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these asseis are not
available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

County of Woodbury, iowa, Net Assets

2008 2007
Governmental  Component  Governmental  Component
Activities Unit Activities Unit

Current and other assets $ 48,912,527 $ 1,615,902 $46,460,671 $1,418,575

Capital assets 68,751,770 556,961 67,655,868 641,602

Total Assets 117,664,297 2,212,893 114,116,539 2060177

Long-term liahilities outstanding 1,360,000 - 1,120,000 -

OQther fiabilities 31,952,468 259,036 30,654,134 330,147

Total liabilities 33,312,468 259,036 31,774,134 330,147
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 66,831,770 596,991 65,875,868 641,602

Restricted 250,725 29,875 255,086 29,875

Unrestricted 17,269,334 1,326,991 16,111,451 1,058,553

Total nef assets $ 84,351,829 $ 1,953,857 $82,342 405 $1,730,030

An insignificant portion of the County’s net assets represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net assets ($17,269,334) may be used to meet the County’'s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in all
three categories of net assets, both for the County as a whole, as well as for its
separate governmental and component unit activities.

The County’s net assets increased by $2,009,424 during the current year. This

increase is attributable to the operations of the activities of the County. The
component unif net assets increased by $223,827.

Governmental activities, Governmental activities increased the County's net assets
by $2,009,424. Key elements of this increase are as follows:
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County of Woodbury, lowa, Change in Net Assets

Revenue:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Interest and penalties on taxes
Other taxes
State tax credits
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues
Unrestricted investment earnings
Other
Total revenues

Expenses:
Public safety and legal services
Physical health and social services
Mental health
County environment and education
Roads and transportation
Government services to residents
Administration
Non-program
Unallocated Depreciation expense
Interest on long-term debt
Total Expenses
Increase in net assets
Net assets — beginning, as restated
Net assets - ending

20G8 2007
Governmental Component  Governmental  Component
Activities Unit Activities Unit
$ 3401838 § 546,705 $ 3191405 § 431,376
15,151 555 4,630,664 13,842,180 4,869,670
2,182,286 7,174,203
24,414,792 23,490,312
322,586 581,589
2457 253 2,528,617
862,309 846,949
40,524 28,905
1,183,062 1,337,192
225 541 224170
50,241,746 5,177,369 53,245 512 5,301,346
12,405,587 11,601,421
5,129,237 4,953 542 4,531,985 5,046,735
11,455,761 11,478,487
2,136,056 2,035,279
8,716,163 8,875,077
1,939,748 2,003,211
6,112,601 6,052,674
12,828 52,755
255,097 254,629
69,244 79,426
48,232,322 4,953 542 46,954,944 5,048,735
2,009,424 223,827 6,250,568 254,611
$2,342405 1,730,030 76,051,837 1,475,419
$ 84,351,829 § 1,953 857 $82342,405  $1,730,030

» Capital grants for governmental activities decreased by $4,991,917. This was the
result of a significant decrease in the Farm to Market activity for fiscal year 2008 of

approximately $5,400,000.

s« Taxes increased by $924,480 as a result of an increase in the general
supplemental, rural services, and debt service tax levies as budgeted.

For the most pari, increases in expenses closely paralleled inflation and the growth in
the demand for services. The public safety and legal services function saw a greater
increase in expenses due in part to expenses related to the Phoenix Program and

other related services to inmates.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the County's govermnmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, cutflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the County's financing requirements. [n particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a County’s net resources
avaitable for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the curreni fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $16,640,918, an increase of $1,449,537 in
comparison with the prior year. The unreserved fund balance, which is available for
spending at the County’s discretion, increased approximately $1,976,104, while the
reserve for inventories decreased approximately $527,642. The remainder of fund
halance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has
already been committed to pay debt service ($261,478).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $6,947,033. As a
measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be usefui to compare both unreserved
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund
balance represents 26.8% of total general fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the County’s general fund increased by $782,125 during the
current fiscal year. Key factor in this increase is as foliows:

+ The County's fees for services did well during FY 08 gaining $371,953. Alsc tax
collections were up $888,017.

The mental health fund has a total fund balance of $2,007,665, which is an increase of
$1,063,986 from the prior year. Key factor in this increase is as follows:

« Legislation was passed by the lowa legislature requiring the mental health fund to
carry an accrued unrestricted reserve of 15% of expenditures without a cutback of
state funding for mental heaith services. Thus the County received unanticipated
revenue from the state as a result of achieving that cash reserve.

The rural services fund has a total fund balance of $192,571, which is an increase of
$62,299 from the prior year. Key factor in this increase is as follows:

s Tax collections were up $46,000.

The secondary roads fund has a total fund balance of $4,970,720, which is a decrease
of $576,332 from the prior year. Key factor to this decrease was primarily the resuit of
the timing of road and bridge projects undertaken during the year.
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The debt service fund has total fund balance of $261,478, all of which is reserved for
the payment of debt service. The net increase in fund balance during the current year
in the debt service fund was $1,075.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget resulied from
one amendment which increased revenues by $2,446,150.

This amendment increased budgeted expenditures by $3,406,231 The amendment
can be briefly summarized as follows;

$1,706,120 increase in intergovernmental revenues,

$50,000 increase in charges for services,

$690,030 increase in miscellanesous revenue,

$290,645 increase in public safety and legal services expenditures,
$46,374 increase in physical health and social services,

$1,847,618 increase in mental health expenditures,

$1,086,386 increase in County environment and education expenditures,
$22,153 increase in government services to residents expenditures,
$34,055 increase in administration,

$79,000 increase in capital outlay.

¢ & » » 0

¢« & & » @

Of this increase, $1,706,120 was to be funded out of increases in various
intergovernmentat revenues, charges for services and miscellaneous revenuss. The
remaining amount was {o be budgeted from available fund balance. During the year,
however, revenues did not exceed budgetary estimates and expenditures were less
than budgetary estimates, thus the need to draw upon existing fund balance.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The County's, investment in capital assetls for its governmental
activities as of June 30, 2008, amounts fc $68,751,770 (net of accumulated
depreciation of $38,729,512). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings
and system, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways,
and bridges. The total increase in the County's, investment in capital assets for the
current fiscal year was 1.6%.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscai year included the following:
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+ The construction of bridges and roads total $608,398 for the Secondary Roads
Fund.

» The acguisition of a road grader, vehicles, and other equipment for the secondary
roads fund in the amount of $§713,392.

¢ Land improvements to County parks and park equipment in the amount of
$720,500.

s The construction of the nature frail at Little Sioux Park in the amount of $1,233,342.

County of Woodbury, lowa, Capital Assets

2008 2007
Governmentai  Component  Governmental  Component
Activities Unit Activities Linit
Land $ 5,490,898 $ 4,770,398
Construction in Progress 8,068,683 8,109,869
Land improvements 1,881,601 648,259
Buildings and structures 23,172,837 $ 539,432 22,093,583 $ 539,432
Machinery and equipment 13,690,521 394,210 12,839,692 394,210
Infrastructure 55,176,732 54,694 179
107,481,282 933,642 103,155,980 833,642
L ess accumuiated depreciation (38,729,512) (336,652)  (35.500,112) (292,040)
Net capitat assets $68,751,770 & 598,990 $67655888 § 641,602

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in note 5 of the
financial statements.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had total bonded
debt outstanding of $1,920,000.

County of Woodbury, lowa, Qutstanding Debt

2008 2007
Governmental Component Governmentai  Component
Activities Unit Activilies Unit
Bonds payable $1,920,000 $ - $1,680,000 3
Total $1,920,000 $ - $1,680,000 $

The County's total debt increased by $240,000 (14%} during the current fiscal yeatr.
The key factor of this increase was that new debt was issued in fiscal year 2008.

The County maintains an “A” rating from Standard & Poor's and an “A” rating from
Moody's for general obligation debt,

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may
issue to 5% of its fotal assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the County is
$244,573,025, which is significantly in excess of the County's outstanding general
obligation debt.
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Additional information on the County's long-term debt can be found in note 6 of the
financial statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The unemployment rate for the County is currently 3.8%, which is up from a rate of
3.7% a year ago. This compares favorably {o the state’s average unemployment
rate of 4.4% and the national average rate of 6.8%.

o Total assessed valuation for the County increased from $4,799,207,557 in 2006-
2007 to $4,880,417,942 in 2007-2008, for an average annual increase of 1.7%.

» Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the County's budget for the 2009
fiscal vear.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund increased
to $6,947,033. The balance of the cash reserves in the general fund will be used to
help get to the state recommended cash reserve levels.

Reqguests for Information

This financial report is designed fo provide a general overview of the County's finances
for all those with an interest in the County’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the County Auditor/Recorder, 2620 Douglas Street, Sioux City,
1A 51101,
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

Primary Government

Component Unit

Governmental Siouxland
Activities District Health
ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 18,505,128 3% 1,228,281
Receivables:
Property Tax 110,407
Future Property Tax 26,013,643
Accrued Interest 239,012
Accounts 151,672 17,746
Assessments 85,259
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 2,162,591 369,875
Prepaid liems 67,204
inventories 990,953
Investment in Joint Venture 586,568
Land 5,490,898
Construction in Progress 8,068,693
infrastructure, Property and Equipment, Net
of Accumulated Depreciation 55,192,179 596,991
Total Assets 117,664,297 2,212,893
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 2,857,448 63,536
Deferred Revenue - Future Property Tax 26,013,643
Deferred Revenue 25,160
Accrued Inferest Payable 10,753
Accrued Claims Payable 1,082,903
Salaries and Benefits Payable 469,239 40,285
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within one year:
General Obligation Bonds 560,000
Compensated Absences 933,322 155,215
Due in more than one year:
General Obligation Bonds 1,360,000
Total Liabilities 33,312,468 259,036
NET ASSETS
invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt 66,831,770 596,991
Restricted for:
BPebt Service 250,725
Medicaid Administrative Clearing 29,875
Unrestricted : 17,269,334 1,326,991
Total Net Assets $ 84,351,820 § 1,953,857

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Program
Revenues

Charges for
Functions/Programs Expenses Services

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

Public safety and legal services $ 12,405,587 5 1,377,320
Physical health and social services 5,129,237
Mental health 11,455,761 152,540
County environment and education 2,136,066 286,266
Roads and transportation 8,716,163 126,953
Government services to Residents 1,939,748 1,294,399
Administration 6,112,601 164,360
Non-program 12,828
Unallocated depreciation expense 285,097
Interest on long-term debt 69,244

Total governmental activities b 48,232,322 $ 3,401,838

Component Unit:
Siouxland District Health $ 4,953,542 5 546,705

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue

and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital
Grants Grants Governmental Component
Contributions Contributions Activities Unit
5 1,349,105 $ {9,679,162)
390,154 {4,739,083)
8,789,707 (2,513,514)
140,206 750,487 {959,097)
4,482,383 1,403,722 (2,703,105)
28,077 (617,272)
{5,948,241)
{12,828)
(255,097)
(69,244)
$ 15,151,555 $ 2,182,286 $ {27,496,643)
$ 4,630,664 223,827
General Revenues;
Property and other county tax levied for:
General Purposes 23,907,767
Debt Service 507,025
interest and penalties on taxes 322,586
State tax credits 862,309
L.ocal option sales tax 2,094,563
Gambiing Taxes 362,690
Unrestricted Intergovernmental revenues 40,524
Unrestricted investment earnings 1,183,062
Miscellaneous 225,541
Total general revenues 29,506,067 -
Change in net assets 2,009,424 223,827
Net assets - beginning 82,342,405 1,730,030
Net assets - ending 3 84,351,829 1,953,857

See Accompanying Notes fo Financiat Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Funds
JUNE 30, 2008

Mental
General Health
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 6,739,206 § 3,695,008
Receivables:
Property Tax 85,798 15,045
Future Property Tax 20,215,334 3,545,028
Accrued Interest 181,976
Accounts 61,379
Assessments
Due from Other Funds 1,850
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 1,171,854 136,485
inventories
Total Assets 28,457,497 7,391,656
Liabilities and Equity
Liabitities:
Accounts Payable 650,083 1,820,837
Cue to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue - Future Property Tax 20,215,334 3,545,028
Unearned Revenue 83,004 14,558
Salaries and Benefits Payable 352,043 3,568
Total Liabilities 21,300,464 5,383,991
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Debt Service
Reserved for Inventories
Unreserved, designated for;
Capital Expenditures 210,000
Unreserved for:
General Fund 6,947,033
Special Revenue Fund 2,007,665
Capital Project Fund
Permanent Fund
Total Fund Balances 7,157,033 2,007,665
Total Liabilities and Equity 28,457 497 § 7,391,656

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Other Total
Rural Secondary Debt Governmental Governmental
Services Roads Service Funds Funds
226,236 & 3,620,286 § 255,891 § 1,959,469 16,396,186
7,274 2,290 110,407
1,713,791 539,490 26,013,643
4,209 5,508 15,414 207,107
914 75,278 137,571
59,240 26,019 85,259
1,850
783,636 70,516 2,162,591
990,853 990,953
1,947,301 5,359,238 803,179 2,146,696 46,105,567
13,755 247,868 63,354 2,795,897
1,850 1,850
1,713,791 539,490 26,013,643
7,252 51,835 2,211 25,160 184,020
19,032 88,815 4,881 469,239
1,754,730 388,518 541,701 95,245 20,464,649
261,478 261,478
990,953 390,953
210,000
6,947,033
192,571 3,979,767 1,736,791 7,916,794
278,535 278,535
36,125 36,125
102,571 4,970,720 261,478 2,051,451 16,640,918
1,947,301 & 5,359,238 § 803,179 § 2,146,696 46,105,567

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements






COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds (page 30) $ 16,640,918
Infrastructure, property, and equipment used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 68,751,770
The investment in joint venture recorded in governmental activities is not
a financial resource and, therefore, is not reported in the fund. 586,568
internal service funds used by management to charge the costs of self-insured heaith,
general Hability, and worker compensation are included in the statement of het assets. 1,077,788
Deferred revenues from the balance sheet that provide current financial resources
for governmental activities. 158,860
Accrued expenses from the balance sheet that require current financial resources
for governmental activities. {10,753)
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the funds.
General Obligation Bonds (1,920,000)
Compensated Absences (933,322) (2,853,322)
Total Net Assets - Governmental Activities (page 26) $ 84,351,829

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Mental
General Health
Revenue:
Property and other county tax 19,335,354 3,443,189
Interest and penally on property tax 322,586
Intergovernmental 3,369,018 8,911,215
Licenses and permits 8,813
Charges for services 1,741,929 7,420
Use of money and property 1,079,157
Miscellaneous 61,284 145,120

Total Revenue 25,919,141 12,606,944

Expenditures:
Current operating:

Public safety and legal setvices 11,232,094

Physical health and social services 4,919,034

Mental health 11,442,958

County environment and education 1,241,340

Roads and transportation

Government services to residents 1,801,835

Administration 6,052,940

Non-program services 12,642

Capital projects 546,365

Debt service:

Principal
Interest _

Total Expenditures 25,806,250 11,442,958
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 112,891 1,063,986
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 142,500
Transfers (out)
Issuance of debt 526,734

Total other financing sources (uses) 669,234 -
Net Change in Fund Balances 782,125 1,063,986
Fund balances - beginning of year 6,374,208 943,679

7,157,033 % 2,007,665

Fund balances - end of year

See Accompanying Nates to Financial Statements
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QOther Total
Rural Secondary Debt Governmental Governmental
Services Roads Service Funds Funds

$ 1,495,429 § 1,675,650 § 507,105 3 418,913 § 26,875,640
322,586

54,638 4,758,744 16,790 925,299 18,035,704
27,477 8,275 45,565
118,678 46,387 1,914,414

100,988 264,639 1,444,784

145 19,089 172,209 397,847
1,677,689 6,580,436 624,883 1,827,447 49,036,540
400,783 110,915 11,743,792
4,919,034

11,442,958

428,567 244,336 1,914,243
7,182,680 7,182,680

5,972 18,026 1,825,833
19,690 6,072,630

186 12,828
608,398 1,494 434 2,649,197

560,000 560,000

63,808 63,808

835,508 7,810,768 623,808 1,867,711 48,387,003
742,181 (1,230,332) 1,075 {40,264) 649,537
29,732 654,000 123,133 949,365
(709,614) (239,751) (949,365)
273,266 800,000

(679,882) 654,000 - 156,648 800,000
62,299 (576,332) 1,075 116,384 1,448,537
130,272 5,547,052 260,403 1,935,067 15,191,381

$ 192,571 % 4,970,720 § 261,478 §$ 2051451 § 16,640,918

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different becatse:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 33) $ 1,449,537

Governmental funds report capital outlays, including infrastructure, as
expenditures, However, in the statement of activilies, the cost of those assels
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. Capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current year as

foliows:
Expenditures for capital assets $ 4,564,205
Depreciation expense {3,460,823) 1,103,402

Change in the investment in joint venture that does not require current financial
resources, 123,266

Governmental funds report the proceeds from the sale of fixed assets as
revenue whereas the statement of activities reports the gain on the sale of
fixed assets. This is the effect on the change in net assefs on the statement of

activities. {7,500)
Revenues reported in the funds that are not available to provide current

financial rescurces. (23,696)
Accrued interest expense that does not require current financial resources. {5,436)
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt, {800,000}

internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of self-

insured health, general tiability, and worker compensation are included in the

statement of net assets. The net revenue of the internal service funds is

reported with governmental activities. (375,042)

Compensated absences that do not require current financial resources. {15,107)

The repayment of the principal of bonded long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds without affecting the net assets.

The statement of activities does not reflect the payment of principal on bonded
jong-term debt. The principal paid on bonded iong-term debt during the current

year was: 560,000
Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 28) $ 2,009,424

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Governmental Activities - internal Service Fund

June 30, 2008

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments
Receivables:
Accrued Interest
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid ltems
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Claims

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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2,108,942

31,805
14,101
67,294

2,222,242

61,551
1,082,903

1 144,454

1,077,788




COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Governmental Activities - Internal Service Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Operating revenues:
Charges for services to operating funds $
Reimbursement from employees/insurance
Miscellaneous

5,377,568
141,194
16,088

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Claims paid
Insurance premiums
Administrative fees

5,535,750

4,919,318
630,491
301,772
136,847

Legal fees

Total operating expenses

5,988,428

Operating loss

Nenoperating income:
Interest on investments

(452,678)

77,636

Change in Net Assets

Net assets - beginning

(375,042)

1,452,830

Net assets - ending $

1,077,788

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from employer contributions 3
Cash received from retiree/other contribution
Other operating revenue

5,377,568

141,194

4,449
(5,848,620}

Cash payments for insurance premiums and services
Net cash (used) from operating activities

(325,400)

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Due from other funds

1,714

Cash flows from investing activities:
interest on investments

57,213

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(266,482)

2,375,424

Cash and pooled investments - beginning of year

Cash and pooled investments ~ end of year 3

2,108,942

iReconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in
operating activities:

Operating loss : $

Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) in accounts receivable
{Increase) in prepaid expenses
increase in accounts payable
Increase in claims payable

(452,678)

(12,5639)
(31,845)
41,332

130,321

Net cash (used) from operating activities $

(325,409)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
37



COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IODWA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Agency Funds
June 30, 2008

ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments
Receivables:
Property Tax
FFuture Property Tax
Accounts
Assessments
Interest
Due from Other Governments
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Governments
Trusts Payable
Compensated Absences
Salaries and Benefits Payable
Total Liabilities

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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$

5,764,462

461,329
108,695,551
121,901
1,087,052
441
1,332,570

117,463,306

1,015,183
116,351,891
12,778
63,946
19,508

117,463,306




COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Note 1 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The County of Woodbury, lowa (the County) is a political subdivision of the State of lowa
and operates under the Home Rule provisions of the Constitution of fowa. The County
operates under the Board of Supervisors form of government. Elections are on a partisan
basis. Other elected officials operate independently with the Board of Supervisors. These
officials are the Auditor/Recorder, Treasurer, Sheriff, and Attorney. The County provides
numerous services to citizens, including taw enforcement, health and social services, parks
and cultural activities, planning and zoning, roadway construction and maintenance, and
general administrative services,

The County’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Siandards
Board. The Governmental Accounting Standards Beard is responsible for establishing GAAP
for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).
Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued pricr to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in hoth the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements o the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Beard. Governments also have the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject fo this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-
sector guidance. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by
the County are discussed below.

A. Reporiing Entity
For financial reporting purposes, the County has included all funds, organizations,

agencies, boards, commissions and authorities. The County has ailso considered all
potential component units for which it is financially accountable and other organizations
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the County are such that
exciusion would cause the County's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be considered in
determining financial accountabifity. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of
an crganization’s governing body and (1) the ahility of the County to impose its will on
that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific bensfils to or
impose specific financial burdens on the County.

These financial statements present Woodbury County (the primary government) and its
component units. The component units discussed below are included in the County’s
reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships
with the County.

Blended Component Units are entities that are legally separate from the County, but are
so intertwined with the County that they are, in substance, the same as the County. They
are reported as part of the County and blended into the appropriate funds. Eleven
drainage districts have been established pursuant to Chapter 468 of the Code of lowa
for the drainage of surface waters from agricultural and other lands or the profection of
such lands from overflow. Although these districts are legally separate from the County,
they are controfled, managed, and supervised by the Woodbury County Board of
Supervisors, which is the same govering board as the primary government. The
drainage districts are reported as a special revenue fund. Financial information of the
individual drainage districts can be obtained from the Woodbury County Auditor's Office.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Note 1 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ~ (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Unit — Siouxiand District Health is presented in a
separate column to emphasize that it is legally separate from the County, but is fiscally
dependent on the County. The County is financially accountable for the Siouxland
District Health because the County levies faxes (if necessary) and must approve any
debt issuances. Separate financial statements for Siouxland District Health are not

issued.

Jointly Governed Organizations - The County also participates in several jointly
governed organizations that provide goods or setvices to the citizenry of the County but
do not meet the criteria of a joint venture since there is no angeing financial interest or
responsibility by the participating governments. The County Board of Supervisors are
members of or appoint representatives to the following boards and commissions:
Waodbury County Assessor's Conference Board, Woodbury County and Municipal Joint
Disaster Services Cammission, County Joint E911 Service Board, and the Woodbury
County Courthouse Foundation. Financial fransactions of these organizations are
included in the County’s financial statements only to the extent of the County's fiduciary
relationship with the organization and, as such, are reported in an Agency Fund of the
County.

Basic Financial Statements — Government-Wide Statements

The County's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the
County as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the County's major funds).
Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as
governmental, The County has no business-type activities. The County's Public Safety
and Legal Services, Physical Health and Social Services, County Environment and
Education, and Government Services to Residents are classified as governmental
activities. The County’s internal service fund is classified as a primarily governmental

type activity.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information on all of
the nonfiduciary activities of the County and its component units. In the government-
wide Statement of Net Assets, the governmental activities column (a) is presentedon a
consolidated basis by column, (b) and is reported on a full accrual, economic resource
basis, which recognizes ali long-term assets and receivables as welf as long-term debt
and obligations. The County's net assets are reported in three parts — invested in
capitat assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets.
The County first uses restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of
each of the County’s functions {administration, law enforcement, courts, roads, etc.).
The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property taxes,
fines, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses {including
depreciation) by related program revenues, operating grants, and capital grants.
Program revenues must be directly associated with the function. Operating grants
include operating-specific and discretionary {(either operating or capital)} grants while the
capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The County does not allocate indirect costs. Certain expenses of the County are
accounted for through the internat service fund on a cost-reimbursement basis.

As a generai rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are interfund
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Note 1 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - {Continued)

services provided; eliminations of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainabitity of the County as an entity and
the change in the County's net assefs resulting from the current year's activities,

Basis of Preseniation - Fund Accgounting

The financial fransactions of the County are reported in individual funds in the fund

financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
halancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues
and expendifures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification
within the financial statements.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in the governmental
category. Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASB No.
34 sets forth minimum criteria for the determination of major funds. The County
electively added funds, as major funds, which had a specific community focus. The
nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statementis.

Governmental Fund Types — The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement
{in the fund statements) is upon the determination of financial position and changes
in financial position (sources, uses, and bafances of financial rescurces) rather than
upon net income. The County reports the following major governmental funds.

1) General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County.
All general tax revenues and other revenues not allocated hy law or contractual
agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund. From the fund are
paid the general operating expenditures, the fixed charges and the capital
improvement costs that are not paid from other funds.

2) Special Revenue Funds

The Mentat Health Fund is used to account for property tax and other
revenues designated to be used to fund mental health, mental retardation,
and developmenta! disabilities services.

The Rural Services Fund is used fo account for property tax and other
revenues to provide services which are primarily intended to benefit those
persons residing in the County outside of incaorporated city areas.

The Secondary Roads Fund is used to account for secondary road
construction and maintenance.

3) Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund is utilized to account for the
payment of interest and principal on the County's general tfong-term debt.

Proprietary Fund Types — The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon
determination of operating income, changes in net assets, financiai position, and
cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles used are those applicable
to similar businesses in the private sector. The County reports the following
proprietary fund:
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Note 1 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — {Continued)

D.

1} Internal Service Fund — Accounts for the County's self-insured health, general
liability and workers compensation insurance funds.

The County's internal service fund is presented in the proprietary fund financial
statements. Because the principal users of the internal services are the
County's governmental activities, the financial statements of the internal service
fund is consolidated into the governmental cofumn when presented in the
government-wide financial statements. To the extent possible, the cost of
these services is reported in the appropriate functional activity.

Fiduciary Fund Types - Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in an agency
or custodial capacity for others and therefore nof available to suppori County
programs. Since agency funds are custodial in nature, they do not involve the
measurement of results of operations and are not incorporated into the government-
wide statemenis,

The agency funds of the County account for the property taxes levied by political
subdivisions within the county, collections of those amounts by the county, and the
remittance of the collected amounts to the subdivisions.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are
recognized in the accounis and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the
timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Accrual accounting is used for all activities in the government-wide financial statements
and for the proprietary and fiduciary activities in the fund financial statements.
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Modified accrual is used by all governmental funds in the fund financial statements.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available).
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available”
means coilectible within the current peried or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period, The government considers property taxes as available if
they are collected within 60 days after year-end. A 60-day availahility period is used for
revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues with the exception of
expenditure-driven grants. A one-year availahility period is used for expenditure-driven
grants.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund fiability is incurred. An exception to this
general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation debt, if any, is recognized
when due.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes and intergovernmental
revenues. Licenses, fines and permits are not suscepfible to accrual because generally
they are not measurable until received in cash.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally resuit from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal cngoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the County’s internal service fund is
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for internal service
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Note 1 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ~ (Continued)

funds include the cost of services and administrative expenses. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
axpenses.

E. Budgets — The budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported as Required

Supplementary Information. During the year ended June 30, 2008, disbursements
exceeded the amounts budgeted in the roads and transportation function and the capita
projects function.

Cash and Pogied Investments - The cash balances of most County funds along with its
component unit are pooted and invested. The County has defined cash and cash
equivalents fo include cash on hand and demand deposits. In addition, each fund’s
equity in the county's investment pool is treated as a cash equivalent because the funds
can deposit or effectively withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty.
Interest earned on investments is recorded in the General Fund, unless otherwise
provided by law. The County and its component unit use the following methad in
determining the reported amounts:

Type Method
Certificates of Deposit Cost

. Property Tax Receivable - The County's property tax rates were extended against the

assessed valuation of the County as of January 1, 2006 fo compute the amounts that
became liens on property on July 1, 2607. These taxes were due and payable in two
installments on September 30, 2007 and March 31, 2008 at the County Treasurer's
Office. Property tax receivable represents taxes that are due and payable but have not
heen collected.

Future Property Taxes Receivable — This represents taxes certified by the Board of
Supervisors to be collected in the next fiscal year for the purposes set out in the budget
for the next fiscal year. By statute, the Board of Supervisors is required to certify its
budget in March of each year for the subsequent fiscal year. However, by statute, the
tax asking and budget certification for the following fiscal year becomes effective on the
first day of that year.

Although the succeeding year property tax receivable has heen recorded, the related
revenue is deferred in both the government-wide and fund finarcial statements and will
not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied. For agency funds, as
no revenues are recorded, the amounts are reflected as being due to other

governments.

Due to/from Other Funds - During the course of operations numerous transactions
occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These
receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other
funds" on the balance sheet.

Due to/from Other Governments - Due to/from other governments represents state tax
credits due from the State of lowa, various shared revenues, grants, and
reimbursements receivable and taxes and other revenues collected by the County which
will be remitted to other governments.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Note 1 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — {Continued)

K.

nventories - Inventories are valued at cost using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method.
The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when
consumed rather than when purchased.

Compensated Absenges - County employees accumulate a limited amount of earned
but unused vacation and sick leave hours for subsequent use or for payment upon
termination, death or retirement. A liability is recorded when incurred in the government-
wide and fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in
the governmental fund financial statements only for employees that have resigned or
retired. The compensated absence liability has been computed based onrates of pay in
effect at June 30, 2008. The compensated absence liability attributable to the
governmental activities wili he paid primarily by the General, Mental Health, Rural
Services and Secondary Roads Fund.

Deferred Revenue - Although certain revenues are measurable, they are not available.
Available means coliectible within the current period or soon enough thergafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. Deferred revenue in the governmental fund
financial statements represents the amount of assets that have been recognized, but
the related revenue has not been recognized since the assets are not collectible within
the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used {o pay liabilities of the current
period. Defarred revenue consists of unspent grant proceeds as well as property tax
receivable and other receivables not collected within sixty days after year-end.

Deferred revenue in the Statement of Net Assets consists of future year property tax
receivable that will not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied and

unspent grant proceeds.

Capital Assets — Capital assets, which include property, equipment and vehicles, and
infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, and similar items
which are immovable and of vaiue only to the government), are reported in the
governmental activities column in the government-wide statement of net assets. Capital
assefs are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market vaiue at the
date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend assetlives are not capitalized. Reportable capital
assets are defined by the County as assets with initial, individuat costs in excess of
$5,000. Property and equipment of the County is depreciated using the straight line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and Structures 39 - 50 Years
infrastructure 15 - 70 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3 — 10 Years

Landfill -~ The County participates in a 28E agreement with Woodbury County Solid
Waste Agency and therefore, is not required to account for landfill post closure costs.

Long-Term Liabilities — In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicable governmental activities or proprietary fund Statement of Net Assets.
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of
the related debt.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Note 1 -

Note 2 -

Note 3 -

Note 4 -

Transfer In:

General Fund
Rural Services -
Secondary Roads 654,000

Summary of Significant Accotinting Policies — (Continued)

in the governmental fund financial statements, the face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing scurces. Issuance cosis, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Q. Fund Equity — In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund
balance are reported for amounts not availabie for appropriation or legally restricted by
outside parties far use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent
tentative management plans that are subject to change.

R. Net Assets — The net assets of the Infernal Service Fund is designated for anticipated
future catastrophic losses of the County.

Peposits and Pooled Investments

The County's deposits in banks at June 30, 2008 were entirely covered by federal depository
insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of
lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

The County is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States
government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of
deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the Board of Supervisors;
prime eligible bankers accepiances; certain high rated commercial paper; perfected
repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management investment companies;
and certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage

district.

Both the grimary government and the component unit have no investments as of June 30,
2008 meeting the definition of GASB Statement 40.

Interfund Receivables and Payahles

As of June 30, 2008, short-term interfund horrowings for operating purposes were as
follows:

Fund Due fo Fund Due From Amount
General Capital Project-LEC $ 1,850 *

$ 1,850

*  This interfund balance represents amounts due from/due to to other funds
to cover deficit cash balances.

Interfund Transfers
The detail of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Transfer Qut:

Total
Rural Nonmajor Transfer
Services Governmental In
5 - § 142,500 $ 142,500
29,732 29,732
- 654,000

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 55614 67,519 123,133
Total Transfer Qut § 709,614 § 239,751 $ 949,385
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2008

Note 4 - Interfund Transfers (Continued)

Transfers are used to:

1. Move resources from the fund siatuforily required fo coliect the resources to the fund
statutority required to expend the rescurces.
2. Move unrestricted revenues collected in the rural services fund to finance various
programs and capital projects accounted far in other funds in accordance with budgetary

authorizations.

3. Make corrections for receipts recorded in or expenditures expended from the wroeng

fund.

Note 5 - Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets, including the component unit, is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
20607 Additions Deletions 2008
Goveramental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land ] 4,770,388 § 720,500 § - % 5,490,898
Construction in Progress 8,104,869 2,183,162 2,224,338 8,068,693
Total capital assets not being depreciated 12,880,267 2,903,662 2,224,338 13,559,591
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land Improvements 648,259 1,233,342 - 1,881,601
Buildings and Siructures 22,083,583 1,079,254 - 23,172,837
Machinery and Equipment 12,839,692 1,089,752 238,923 13,680,521
Infrastructure 54,694 179 482 553 - 55,176,732
Totat capitat assets being depreciated 80,275,713 3,884,901 238,923 93,921,691
Less accurnuiated depreciation for:
Land improvements 32,273 8,670 - 40,843
Buildings and Struclures 6,116,815 681,111 - 6,797 926
Machinery and Equipment 9,588,644 1,151,327 231,423 10,488,548
Infrastructure 19,782,380 1,619,715 - 21,402,095
Total accumuiated depreciation 35,500,112 3,460,823 231,423 38,729,512
Total capifal assets being depreciated, net 54 775,601 424,078 7,500 55,182,179
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 67,655868 § 3,327,740  § 2231838 ¢ 68,751,770
Component Unit:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and Structures 3 539,432 § - $ - § 539,432
Equipment 394,210 - - 394,210
Total capital assets being depreciated 933,642 - * 933,642
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buiidings and Structures 70,980 27,800 - 88,780
Equipment 221,060 16,811 - 237,871
Total accumulated depreciation 292,040 44 611 - 336,651
Total capital assets being depreciated, net b 641,602 & {44.611) % - 5 596,891
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COUNTY OF WOQDBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Note 5 -  Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as

fotlows:
Public safety and legal services $ 546,412
Physical health and saciaf services 93,261
County environment and education 170,347
Reoads and franspaortation 2,331,196
Government services fo residents 62,169
Administration 2,341
Unallocated depreciation expense 255,097

£.3.460,823

Note 6 -  Long-Term Liabilities

The County's computed legal debt limit as of June 30, 2008, is $244 573,025 of which
$1,920,000 is committed for outstanding generai abligation debt.

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liability for the year ended June 30,

2008:
General
Obligation
Bonds/Capital Compensated
Loan Notes Absences Total

Balance heginning of year $ 1,680,000 $ 918215 $ 2,598,215

Increases 800,000 933,322 1,733,322
Cecreases 560,000 918,215 1,478,215
Balance end of year $ 1,920,000 $ 933,322 § 2853322
Due within one year $ 560,000 $ 933,322 § 1,493,322

Bonds Payable

A summary of the County's June 30, 2008 general obligation bonded indebiedness is as

follows:
Date Amount Outsfanding
of interest Annual Originally June 30
Issue Rates Payments Issued 2008
General Obligation Bonds/
Capital Loan Notes:
Series 2002 2002 4.8% $ 80,000 $ 800,000 $ 320,000
Series 2004 2004 3.15-3.4% 160,000 800,000 320,060
Series 2008 2006 4.0% 160,000 800,600 480,000
Series 2008 2008 3.5% 160,000 800,000 800,000
§ 1,920,000
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE, BUDGET
AND ACTUAL, ALl GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES, BUDGETARY BASIS

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Qriginal Amended Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Property and other county tax $26,329,624 $26,329,624 $25,199,930 §(1,129,634)
Interest and penalty on property tax 359,000 359,000 322,586 {36.414)
Intergovernmental 13,855,996 15,662,116 19,711,354 4,149,238
Licenses and permits 26,000 26,000 45,565 19,565
Charges for services 2,200,702 2,250,702 1,914,414 (336,288)
Use of money and property 1,144,500 1,144,500 1,444,784 300,284
Miscellaneous 175,250 865,280 397,847 (467,433)
Total Revenue 44,091,072 46,537,222 49,036,540 2,499,318
Expenditures:
Current operating:
Public safety and {egal services 11,638,407 11,829,052 11,743,792 185,260
Physical health and social services 4,964,459 5,010,833 4,919,034 91,799
Mental health 10,484,484 12,332,102 11,442,958 889,144
County environment and education 1,913,139 2,999,525 1,914,243 1,085,282
Roads and transportation 6,905,369 6,905,369 7,182,680 (277,311)
Government services {o residents 2,094,125 2,116,278 1,825,833 280,445
Administration 6,116,580 6,150,635 6,072,630 78,005
Non-program services 930,017 930,017 12,828 917,189
Capital projects 2,212,000 2,291,000 2,649,197 (358,197)
Debt service:
Principal 560,000 560,000 560,000 -
Interest 63,808 63,808 63,808 -
Total Expenditures 47,882,388 51,288,619 48,387,003 2,901,616
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (3.791,318)  (4,751,397) 649,537 5,400,934
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 5,591,387 5,591,387 949,365 (4,642,022)
Transfers out (5,601,387)  (5,591,387) (949,365) 4,642,022
Issuance of bonds - 75,000 800,000 725,000
Total other financing sources {uses) - 75,000 800,000 725,000
et Change in Fund Balances $ (3,791,316) § (4,676,397) 1,449,537 $ 6,125,934
Fund balances - beginning of year 15,191,381

Fund balances - end of year
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Reporting
June 30, 2008

The budgetary comparison is presented as Required Supplementary Information in accordance
with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 41 for governments with
significant budgetary perspective differences resulting from not being able to present budgetary
comparisons for the General Fund and each major Special Revenue Fund.

In accordance with the Code of lowa, the County Board of Supervisors annually adopts a budget
on the modified accrual basis following required public notice and hearing for all funds except
Agency Funds and the Internal Service Fund, and appropriates the amount deemed necessary
for each of the different County offices and departments. The budget may be amended during the
year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized in the
modified accrual budget and appropriations lapse at year end,

Formal and fegal budgetary control is based upon 10 major classes of expenditures known as
functions, not by fund. These 10 functions are: public safety and legal services, physical health
and social services, mental health, county environment and education, roads and transportation,
governmental services to residents, administration, non-program, debt service and capital
projests. Function disbursements required to be budgeted include disbursements for the General
Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Funds. Although the
budget document presents function disbursernents hy fund, the legal level of control is at the
aggregated function level, not by fund. Legal hudgetary confrol is also based upon the
appropriation to each office or department. During the year, one budget amendment increased
budgeted disbursements by $3,406,231. The budget amendment is reflected in the final budgeted
amounts.

In addition, annual budgsts are similarly adopted in accordance with the Code of lowa by the
appropriate governing body as indicated: for the County Extension Office by the County
Agricuitural Extension Council, for the County Assessor by the County Conference Board, for the
E911 System by the Joint E311 Service Board and for Emergency Management Services by the
County Emergency Management Commission.

During the year ended June 30, 2008, dishursements exceeded the amounts budgeted in the
roads and transportation and capital projects functions.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOCWA
COMBINING BAILANCE SHEET
Governmental Nonmajor Funds
JUNE 30, 2008

Special Revenue Funds

Recorder County
Recorder Electronic EMS Government
Records Transaction Leoan Assistance
Management Fee Fund Fund
Assets
Cash and Pooled investments $ 184,619 § 18311 § 121,494 $ 2,717
Receivables:
Accrued Interest 114 51 1,780
Accounts 70,200
Assessments
Due from Other Governmentat Agencies 4,951
Total Assefs 189,684 18,362 193,474 2,717

Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Salaries and Benefits Payable
Total Liabilities - - - -

Fund Balances:
Unreserved for:
Special Revenue Fund 189,684 18,362 193,474 2,717
Capital Project Fund

Permanent Fund
Total Fund Balances 189,684 18,362 193,474 2,717

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 180684 § 18362 $ 193474 § 2,717
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Special Revenue Funds

Infrastructure
Economic County Drainage Sheriff's Sheriff's
Development {ibrary Forfeiture REAP Districts Reserve Donation
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
3 350,063 % 30,819 § 98510 § 78,242 % 29465 § 13,987 & 27,763
53 126
4,863 215
26,019
63,800
413,963 35,682 98,778 78,368 55,484 13,987 27,763
27,000 1,717 1,400 19,674
2,222
27,000 3,938 1,400 - 19,674 - -
386,963 31,743 97,378 78,368 35,810 13,987 27,763
386,963 31,743 97,378 78,368 35,810 13,987 27,763
3 413,963 3§ 35682 % 98,778 % 78,368 % 55484 $ 13987 § 27,763
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - (Continued)
Governmental Nonmajor Funds

JUNE 30, 2008

Special Revenue Funds

Nature Conservation
DARE Center LLEBG Reserve
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Assets
Cash and Pooled investments $ 5776 $ 260,936 $ 51,261 § 368,715
Receivables:
Accrued Interest 8,631 84 4,520
Accounts
Assessmentis
Due from Other Governmental Agencies
Total Assets 5,776 269,567 51,345 373,235
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities:
Accounis Payable 11,562
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue 25,160
Salaries and Benefits Payabie 2,659
Total Liabilities - - 25,160 14,221

Fund Balances:
Unreserved for;
Special Revenue Fund 5,776 269,567 26,185 359,014
Capital Project Fund
Permanent Fund :
Total Fund Balances 5,776 269,567 26,185 359,014
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 5776 $ 269567 § 51,345 § 373,235
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Capital Projects

Courfhouse Permanent

LEC Renovation Fund Total
$ 280,721 % 36,070 % 1,959,469
55 15,414
75,278
26,019
1,665 70,516
1,665 280,721 36,125 2,146,696
2,001 63,354
1,850 1,850
25,160
4,881
1,850 2,001 - 95,245
1,736,791
{185) 278,720 278,535
36,125 36,125
(185) 278,720 36,125 2,051,451
1665 $ 280,721 % 36,125 3 2,146,696
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Special Revenue Funds

Infrastructure
Economic County Drainage Sheriff's Sheriff's
Development Library Forfeiture REAP Districts Reserve Donation
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 418913
$ 458627 $ 52,895
$ 28,077
$ 2115 1,378
236 3,072 11,871 $ 2825 § 9414
419,149 48,699 13,986 54,273 28,077 2,825 9,414
20,200 3,085 5177
150,782 65,000
174,988 24,344
174,988 150,782 20,200 65,000 24,344 3,085 5177
244,161 (102,083) (6,214) (10,727} 3,733 (260) 4,237
55614
(172,232)
(172,232) 55614 - - - - R
71,929 (46,469) {(6,214) (10,727} 3,733 {260} 4,237
315,034 78,212 103,592 89,095 32,077 14,247 23,526
$ 386,963 $ 31,743 $ 97,378 $ 78,368 $ 35810 $ 13087 & 27,763
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - (Continued)
Governmental Nonmajor Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Special Revenue Funds

Nature Conservation
DARE Center LLEBG Reserve
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenue:
Property and other county fax
Intergovernmental $ 76,290 $ 750,487
Charges for services
Use of money and property $ 14,667 85 237,290
Miscellaneous $ 1,000 32,330 105,266
Total Revenue 1,000 46,897 76,375 1,093,043
Expenditures:
Current operating:
Public safety and legal services 21,986 59,267
County environment and education 28,554
Government services to residents
Capital projects 1,245,627
Total Expenditures 21,986 - 59,267 1,274,181
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures {20,986) 46,897 17,108 {181,138)
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in 67,519
Transfers {out) (67.519) :
issuance of debt
Total other financing sources (uses) - {67,519) - 67,519
Net Change in Fund Balances {20,986} (20,622) 17,108 (113,619)
Fund balances - beginning of year 26,762 290,189 9,077 472,633
Fund balances - end of year $ 5776 $269567 $ 26,185 $ 359,014
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Capital Projects

Courthouse Permanent

LEC Renovation Fund Total
$ 418,913
925,299
46,387
$ 1,259 264,639
$ 6,195 172,209
8,195 - 1,259 1,827,447
110,916
244,336
18,026
3,645 45,830 1,494,434
3,645 45,830 - 1,867,711
2,550 (45,830) 1,259 (40,264)
123,133
{239,751}
273,266 273,266
- 273,266 - 156,648
2,550 227,436 1,259 116,384
(2,735) 51,284 34,866 1,935,087
$ (185) § 278,720 $ 36,125 $ 2,051,451
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Agency Funds
JUNE 30, 20068

County Ag
Recorder/ County Extension County
Auditor Sheriff Education Assessor
ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 183,244 § 208,451 § 4604 3% 245,142
Recelvables:
Property Tax 1,697 2,073
Future Property Tax 400,006 488,341
Accounts 3,828
Assessments
interest
Due from Other Governments
Total Assets 187,072 208,451 408,307 735,556
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 2,797
Due to Other Governments 187,072 202,540 406,307 714,830
Trusts Payable 591
Compensated Absences 17,929
Salaries and Benefits Payable
Total Liabilities $§ 187,072 $§ 208451 $ 406307 § 735,556
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City Auto
City Area Special License-Use
Assessor Schools Schools Corporations Townships Assessments Tax
$ 343561 $ 801,432 § 27147 % 531,848 % 4,763 $ 41,254 § 1,561,563
4,133 213,442 10,712 227,358 1,869
973,858 50,289,924 2,523,847 53,568,620 440,282
872,484
1,321,652 51,304,798 2,561,706 54,377,826 446,914 913,738 1,561,563
31,515
1,254,010 51,304,798 2,561,706 54,377,826 446,914 913,738 1,561,563
24,352
11,675
$1,321,562 §51,304,708 $2561,706 $ 54,377826 F 446914 § 013,738 3 1,561,563
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - {Continued)
Agency Funds
JUNE 30, 2008

EMS Joint Drainage
Training  Disaster  Bankruptcy Districts

ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 369 3 8,016 § 284,972
Receivables:
Property Tax
Future Property Tax
Accounts 949
Assessments 214,568
Accrued Interest 220
Due from Cther Governments 1,332,570
Total Assets 369 1,333,519 6,016 499,760
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 978,125
Due to Gther Governments 369 325,896 6,016 499,760
Trusts Payable
Compensated Absences 21,665
Salaries and Benefits Payable 7,833
Total Liabilities $ 369 $1,333,619 § 6,016 § 499,760
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Loan

Property Unclaimed Condemna- Tax Emergency Com Future Tax DNR
Tax Property tion Sale 911 Tax Payment  Licenses
$ 104 § 3,747  § 8,822 $12950 § 635,785 $ 761,223 § 32,849
45
10,673
104,126
221
10,822 3,747 8,822 12,950 740,132 - 761,223 32,848
2,746
10,822 3,747 8,822 12,950 737,386 761,223 32,849
$ 10822 % 3,747 § 8,822 $12950 $ 740,132 § - & 761223 § 32849

(continued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - (Continued)

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008
Balance Balance
Julby 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
2007 tions tions 2008
City Assessor
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 234,844 % 974,880 & 866,163 § 343,561
Property Tax Receivabie 4277 4,133 4,277 4,133
Future Property Tax Receivable 960,085 973,858 960,085 973,858
Total Asset 1,199,206 1,952,871 1,830,525 1,321,552
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 32,687 31,515 32,687 31,515
Due to Other Governments 1,135,311 1,885,329 1,766,630 1,254,010
Compensated Absences 21,879 24,352 21,879 24,352
Salaries & Benefits Payable 9,329 11,675 9,329 11,675
Total Liabilities 1,199,206 1,862,871 1,830,525 1,321,552
Schools
Assels
Cash and Pooled investments 763,253 48,423,020 48,384,841 801,432
Property Tax Receivable 214,946 213,442 214,946 213,442
Fuiure Property Tax Receivabie 48,421,260 50,289,924 48,421,260 50,289,924
Total Assets 49,399 459 98,926,386 97,021,047 51,304,798
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 49,309 459 98,826,386 97,021,047 51,304,798
Total Liabilities 49,399,459 98,926,386 97,021,047 51,304,798
Area Schools
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 33,106 2,176,524 2,182,483 27,147
Properly Tax Receivable 9,695 10,712 9,695 10,712
Future Property Tax Receivable 2,176,293 2,523,847 2,176,283 2,523,847
Total Assets 2,218,094 4,711,083 4,368,471 2,561,706
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 2,218,004 4,711,083 4,368,471 2,661,706
Total Liabilities $ 2210004 % 4,711,083 § 4,368,471 $ 2,561,706
{Continued)
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COUNTY OF WOCDBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - {Continued)

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Balance Balance
July 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
2007 tions tions 2008
Corporations
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 861,906 § 50,196,249 $ 50,476,307 581,848
Property Tax Receivable 223,565 227,358 223,565 227,358
Future Property Tax Receivable 50,236,112 53,568,620 50,236,112 53,568,620
Total Assets 51,321,583 103,992,227 100,935,984 54,377,826
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 51,321,583 103,892,227 100,935,984 54,377 826
Total Liabilities 51,321,583 103,092 227 100,835,984 54,377,826
Townships
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments 3,917 429,198 428,352 4,763
Property Tax Receivable 1,525 1,869 1,625 1,869
Future Property Tax Receivable 342,393 440,282 342,393 440,282
Tofal Assets 347,835 871,349 772,270 446,914
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 347,835 871,349 772,270 446,914
Total Liabilities 347,835 871,349 772,270 446 914
City Special Assessments
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments 84,361 265,697 308,804 41,254
Assessments Receivable 976,625 872,484 976,625 872,484
Total Assets 1,060,986 1,138,181 1,285,429 913,738
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 1,060,986 1,138,181 1,285,429 913,738
Total Liabilities 1,060,986 1,138,181 1,285,429 913,738
Auto License and Use Tax
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 1,548,011 18,589,420 18,575,868 1,561,563
Total Assets 1,548,011 18,589,420 18,575,868 1,561,563
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 1,548,011 18,589,420 18,575,668 1,561,563
Total Liabilities 1,548,011 $ 18,589,420 $ 18,575,868 1,561,563
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, iIOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - {Continued)

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Balance Balance
July 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
2007 tions tions 2608
EMS Training
Assets
Cash and Pooled investments 369 $ 9,706 9,706 $ 369
Due from Other Governments - -
Total Assets 369 9,706 9,706 369
Liabilities
Accounts Payable - -
Due to Other Governments 369 9,706 9,706 369
Tofal Liabilities 369 9,706 9,706 369
Joint Disaster
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments - 3,388,746 3,388,746 -
Accountis Receivable 4,550 949 4,550 949
Due from Other Governments 382,336 1,332,570 382,336 1,332,570
Total Assels 386,886 4,722,265 3,775,632 1,333,519
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 157,613 978,125 157,613 978,125
Due to Other Governments 206,570 3,714,642 3,595,316 325,896
Compensated Absences 16,423 21,665 16,423 21,665
Salaries and Benefits Payable 6,280 7,833 6,280 7,833
Total Liabilities 386,886 4,722,265 3,775,632 1,333,519
Bankruptey Fund
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 6,016 - - 6,016
Total Assets 6,016 - - 6,016
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 6,016 - - 6,016
Total Liabilities 6,016 - - 6,016
Drainage Districts
Assets
Cash and Pooied Investments 397,320 345 960 458,308 284,972
Assessments Receivable 261,292 214,568 261,292 214,568
Accrued Interest 8,718 220 8,718 220
Total Assets 667,330 560,748 728,318 499,760
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 3,785 - 3,785 -
Due to Other Governments 663,545 560,748 724 533 499,760
Total Liabilities 667,330 $ 560,748 728,318 % 499,760
{Continued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, [OWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - (Continued)

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Bailance Balance
July 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
2607 fions fions 2008
Property Tax
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments 162 & 10,352 10,410 104
Property Tax Receivable 46 45 46 45
Future Property Tax Receivable 10,356 10,673 10,356 10,673
Total Assets 10,564 21,070 20,812 10,822
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 10,564 21,070 20,812 10,822
Total Liabilities 10,564 21,070 20,812 10,822
Unclaimed Property
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 3,747 - - 3,747
Total Assets 3,747 - - 3,747
Liabilities
{Jue to Other Governments 3,747 - - 3,747
Total Liabilities 3,747 - - 3,747
Condemnation
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 8,662 160 - 8,822
Accounts Receivable 160 ~ 160 “
Total Assets 8,822 160 160 8,822
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 8,822 160 160 8,822
Total Liabilities 8,822 160 160 8,822
Tax Sale
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 40,769 2,156,022 2,183,841 12,950
Total Assets 40,769 2,156,022 2,183,841 12,950
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 40,769 2,156,022 2,183,841 12,950
Total Liabilities 40,769 $ 2,156,022 2,183,841 12,950
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - (Continued)

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008
Balance Balance
July 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
2007 tions tions 2008
Emergency 911
Assefs
Cash and Pooled Invesiments 359,226 % 701,511 424,952 $ 635,785
Accounts Receivable 100,332 104,126 100,332 104,126
Accrued interest 317 221 317 221
Total Assets 459,875 805,858 525,601 740,132
Liabifities
Accounts Payable 1,260 2,746 1,260 2,746
Due to Other Governments 458,615 803,112 524,341 737,386
Total Liabiliies 459 875 805,858 525,601 740,132
Loan Com Tax
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments - 11,207 11,207 -
Totat Assets - 11,207 11,207 -
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments - 11,207 11,207 -
Total Liabilities - 11,207 11,207 -
Future Tax Payment
Assels :
Cash and Pooled investments 694,938 938,744 872,459 761,223
Total Assets 694,938 938,744 872,459 761,223
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 694,938 938,744 872,459 761,223
Totai Liabilities 694,938 938,744 872,458 761,223
DNR Licenses
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 46,035 218,751 231,937 32,849
Total Assets 46,035 218,751 231,937 32,849
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 46,035 218,751 231,937 32,849
Total Liabilities 46,035 % 218,751 231,937 % 32,849
{Continued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - {(Continued)

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Balance Balance
July 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
20067 tions tions 2008
Courthouse Foundation
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 22,702 $ 3,038 5 18,873 $ 6,867
Accounts Receivable - -
Accrued Inferest 58 - 58 -
Total Assets 22,760 3,038 18,931 6,867
Liabilities
Trusts Payable 22,760 3,038 18,931 6,867
Total Liabilities 22,760 3,038 18,931 6,867
Recorder Electronic Fees
Assets
Cash and Pooted Investments 5,173 18,303 20,281 3,195
Total Assets 5173 18,303 20,281 3,195
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 5,173 18,303 20,281 3,195
Total Liabilities 5,173 18,303 20,281 3,195
SEAT Training Fund
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments 4,591 - 37 4,554
Total Assets 4,591 - 37 4,554
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 4,591 - 37 4,554
Total Liabilities 4,591 - 37 4,554
Flex Benefit Program
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments - 85,730 95,730 -
Accounts Receivable - 12,998 - 12,998
Total Assets - 108,728 95,730 12,998
Liabilities
Accounts Payable - 895,730 95,730 -
Due to Other Governments - 12,998 - 12,998
Total Liabilities $ - % 108,728 % 95730 % 12,008
{Continued}
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COUNTY OF WOQODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - {Continued)

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Balance Balance
July 1, Addi- Deduc-~ June 30,
2007 tions tions 2008
Total AHl Agency Funds
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 5773303 % 139,961,303  §$ 139,970,324 § 5,764,462
Receivables:
Property Tax 458,095 461,329 458,095 461,329
Future Property Tax 103,053,390 108,625,551 103,053,390 108,695,551
Accounts 108,278 121,901 108,278 121,901
Assessmenis 1,237,917 1,087,052 1,237,917 1,087,052
Interest 9,093 441 9,093 441
Due from Other Governments 382,336 1,332,570 382,336 1,332,570
Totat Assels 111,022,502 251,660,237 245,219,433 117,463,306
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 216,782 1,110,913 312,512 1,015,183
Due to Other Governments 110,709,229 250,298,880 244,656,218 116,351,891
Trusts Payable 26,226 166,989 180,437 12,778
Compensaied Absences 54,656 63,946 54,656 63,946
Salaries and Benefits Payable 15,609 19,508 15,609 19,508
Total Liabilities $ 111,022,502 § 251,660,236  § 245,219,432  § 117,463,306
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Component Unit

June 30, 2008

ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investmenis 3 1,228,281
Receivables:
Accounts 17,746
Due from Other Governments 369,875
Capital Assets 596,991
Total Assets 2,212 893
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 63,536
Salaries and Benefits Payable 40,285
Compensated Absences 155,215
Total Liabilities 259,036
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets 596,991
Reserved for Medicaid Administrative Clearing 29,875
Unrestricted 1,326,991
Total Net Assets 3 1,053,857

See Accompanying Notes fo Financial Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY,

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Component Unit

IOWA

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Operating revenues:
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Personal and Family Health
Communicable Diseases
Sanitarian
Administration
Elderly Services
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning

Net assefs - ending

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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4,630,664
546,705

5,177,369

3,062,579
25,015
1,108,695
912,733
199,909
44,611

4,853,542

223,827

1,730,030

1,953,857




COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

Schedule of Revenues By Source and Expenditures By Function - All Governmental Funds

For the Years Ended June 30, 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005

Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting

2008 2007 2006 2005
Revenue:
Property and other county fax 25,199,990 § 26,066,941 § 24,245,709 $ 23,565,641
Interest and penalty on praperty tax 322,586 581,589 352,502 330,145
Intergovernmental 19,711,354 16,162,639 15,857,143 14,909,456
Licenses and permits 45,565 53,216 43,625 76,309
Charges for services 1,914,414 1,931,126 1,958,853 2,095,478
Use of money and property 1,444,784 1,654,618 1,355,047 1,061,153
Miscellaneous 397,847 339,207 522,366 550,243
Total Revenue 49,036,540 46,789,336 § 44,335245 42 588,425
Expenditures:

Current operating:
Public safety and legal services 11,743,792 11,190,623 % 10,960,286 10,040,910
Physical health and social services 4,919,034 4,305,209 4,210,688 3,811,978
Mentat health 11,442,958 11,470,835 9,832,736 9,868,766
County environment and education 1,814,243 1,796,918 1,680,315 1,548,295
Roads and transportation 7,182,680 6,618,403 6,382,421 5,691,363
Government services to residents 1,825,833 1,824,173 2,366,767 1,787,425
Administration 6,072,630 5,898,240 5,938,003 5,439,036
Non-program services 12,828 52,755 25,417 65,988
Capital projects 2,649,197 2,941,082 2,630,752 2,417,142
Debt service 623,808 647,270 461,064 403,722
Total 48,387,003 § 46,745,508 § 44488440 § 41,075,525
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WOODBURY COUNTY
STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of Woodbury County's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the
government’s overall financial health.

Contents: Pages
Financial Trends 77-84

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the government’s financial performance and
well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 85-95

These schedules contain information fo help the reader assess
the government’s most significant local revenue source, the
property tax.

Debt Capacity 96-98

These schedules present information to help the reader assess
the affordability of the government’s current levels of outstanding
debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the
future.

Demographic and Economic Information 99-100
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to
help the reader understand the environment within which the
government's financial activities take place.

Operating Information 101-103

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help
the reader understand how the information in the government’s
financial report relates to the services the government provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual reports
for the relevant year,



COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Net Assets by Component

Last Eight Fiscal Years

{accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2001 2002 2003 2004

Governmental Activities/Primary Government

invested in capiial assets, $ 47558211 § 48,960,963 § 49,057,268 § 55,669,646

net of related debt

Resfricted 126,377 135,461 97.454 224,409

Unrestricted 11,279,187 11,024,351 11,317,864 11,084,615
Total governmental activities net assets $ 58,063,775 $ 60,120,775 § 60,472,586 3§ 66,978,670

Note: Accrual-basis financial information for Woodbury County as a whole is available back to 2001 only, the
year GASB Statement 34 was implemented.
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Fiscal Year

2005

$ 57,719,218

222,050
14,315,545

2006

$ 89,147,770

237,878
16,666,189

2007

$ 65,975,868

265,086
16,111,451

2008

$ 66,831,770

250,725
17,269,334

$ 72,256,814

$ 76,051,837

$ 82,342 405

$ 84,351,829
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Changes in Net Assets

Last Eight Fiscal Years

{accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Expenses
Governmental activitfes/Primary Government:
Pubtic safety and legal services $ 8673471 3 9494453 $ 9,575088 $ 10,281,820 $ 10,201,045 § 10,559,183 § 11,581,421 $ 12,405,587
Physical heaith and social services 3,668,234 3,800,481 3,997,748 3,897,076 3,887,603 3,837,820 4,531,885 5,129,237
Mental heaith 8,938,930 8,737,011 8,678,503 8,984,380 9,861,072 9,751,972 11,478,487 11,455,761
County environment and education 1,677,648 1,441,867 1,379,108 1,505,262 1,637,038 1,935,035 2,035,278 2,136,056
Roads and transportation 3,134,592 5,460,997 8,557,808 7,209,753 7.124,822 7,147,147 8,875,077 8,718,163
Government services o residents 5,143,638 4,384,385 5,387 565 1,968,016 1,823,078 1,714,461 2,003,211 1,839,748
Administration 3,790,819 4,886,173 5,838,111 5,015,006 5,023,092 6,081,890 6,052,674 6,112,601
Non-program - - - 57,770 65,088 25,417 52,755 12,828
Capital projects - - - 336,157 501,622 - - -
Unallocated depreciation expense 2,728,033 481,408 183,624 219,455 237,215 249,616 254,629 255,097
Interest on iong-term debt 135,877 69,154 81.684 75,228 70173 69,166 79,426 69,244
Total governmental activities expenses $ 37,891,242 $ 38755929 $ 43,689,350 $ 29,550,823 $ 40,432,748 § 41,471,707 $ 46,954,844 § 48,232 322
Program Revenues
Governmental activities/Primary Govemnment:
Charges for services:
Public safety and legal services $ 519,366 $ 401,344 § 414,682 $ 666,194 $ 1,238,480 $ 1,266,185 § 1,304,267 $ 1,377,320
Physical heaith and social services - 14,120 45,634 - - - - -
Mental health 4,159 87,575 34 187 30,574 144,469 77,409 6,364 152,540
County environment and education 102,443 6,535 59,139 31,415 289,336 317,200 284,383 286,266
Roads and transporiation 2,380 2,945 14,317 3,965 14,579 395,733 104,569 126,953
Government services {o residents 3,195,340 3,198,616 4,900,464 1,366,468 1,284,678 1,407,589 1,322,210 1,294,399
Administration - 140,855 84,514 101,596 288,684 176,678 169,612 164,360
Capital projecis - - - 17,99% 19,011 - - -
Operating grants & contributions 10,877,687 11,412,558 12,528,430 11,632,140 12,426,387 12,765,521 13,842,190 15,151,555
Capital grants & contributions 88,516 469,491 1,735,300 3,226,723 4,022,133 2,173,052 7,174,203 2,182,286

Total governmentat activities program revenues 14,789,831 15,734,039 19,816,667 17,077,068 19,728,767 18,579,367 24,207,798 20,735,679

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmenial aciivities/Primary Govemment: $ (23,101,351) $(23,021,800) § (23,872,683) $ (22,473,757) $(20,703,982) § (22,802,340} $ {22,747,146) $ (27,496,843)
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General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmentat activities/Primary Government:

Property taxes $ 16922454 $ 18,867,421 $ 19,359,897 $ 20,589,955 § 21,489,151 §$ 22,104,007 $ 23,490,312 § 24,414,792
Interest and penalties on taxes 299,357 368,485 307,530 312,619 330,145 352,502 581,589 322,586
State tax credits 963,762 987,762 1,252,391 820,673 859,791 836,919 846,949 862,309
Local option sales tax 1,777,320 1,645,400 1,816,876 1,690,441 1,800,634 1,816,042 2,164,810 2,094,563
Gambling taxes 252,329 268,059 276,417 295,667 294 656 370,525 363,807 362,690
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 1,645,407 484 152 148,713 128,621 87,230 27,363 28,905 40,624
Unrestricied investment eamings 1,347,984 919,863 778,689 775,969 602,783 955,385 1,337,172 1,183,082
Proceeds from sale of non-capitalized assets - - - - 92,500 - - -
Gain on sale of assets - - - - 125,842 - - -
Miscellaneous 835,102 637,798 183,981 702,964 289,394 224,610 224,170 225,541

Total governmental activities/
Primary Government $ 24,043,715 § 24178890 § 24224484 § 25317909 $ 25982126 $ 26,687,363 $ 28,037,714 $ 29,506,067

Change in Net Assets

Government activities/Primary Government $ 942364 $ 1157000 § 351811 § 2844152 § 52781444 § 3795023 § 6290588 § 2009424

Note: Accrual-basis financial information for Woodbury County as a whole is only available back to 2001, the

year GASB Statement 34 was implemented.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

f.ast Ten Fiscal Years

{modified accruat basis of accounting)

General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved for:
Special Revenue
Capital Projects
Permanent Fund

Total All Other Governmental Funds

Total Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved for:
General Fund
Special Revenue
Capital Projects
Permanent Fund

Total Governmental Funds

Fiscal Year

1999

$ 7,857
4,464,462

2000

$ 7,857
4,440,844

2001

$ 7,857
5,044,549

2002

$ 7,857
4,713,855

$ 4,472,319

$ 4,448,701

$ 5,052,406

$ 4,721,812

$ 1,546,062
4,763,117

36,821

$ 1,394,063
4,970,468

36,821

$ 1172,047
4,689,148

39,793

$ 1,126,112
4,662,602

37,407

$ 6,346,000

$ 6,401,352

$ 5,800,988

$ 5,826,111

$ 1,553,919

4,464,462
4,763,117

36,821

§ 1,401,820

4,440,844
4,970,468

36,821

$ 1,179,904

5,044,549
4,589,148

39,793

$ 1,133,069

4,713,955
4,662,592

37,407

$ 10,818,319

$ 10,850,053

$ 10,853,394

$ 10,547,923
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Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

$ 7,857 $ 7,857 § 7,857 - $ - -
4,142,838 3,476,873 5470535 5375281 6,374,908 7,157,033
$ 4,150,605 $ 3484730 $ 5478392 $ 5375281 $ 6,374,908 7,157,033
$ 1,292,495 $ 1,629,683 $ 1,410,720 § 1,304,120 $ 1,778,098 1,252,431
5,608,981 6,306,856 7,579,699 7,925,741 6,954,060 7,916,794
(87,409) (205,068) . 509,191 48,549 278,535
31,128 31,347 31,946 33,220 34,866 36,125

$ 6845195 $ 7,762,820 $ 9,022,365 §$ 9,772,272 $ 8,816,473 9,483,885
$ 1,300,352 $ 1,637,540 $ 1,418,577 §$ 1,304,120 § 1,778,998 1,252,431
4,142,838 3476873  5470,535 5375281 6,374,908 7,157,033
5,608,981 6,306,858 7,579,600  7,925741 6,954,060 7,916,794
(87,409) (205,068) - 509,191 48,549 278,535
31,128 31,347 31,046 33,220 34,866 36,125

$ 10,005,800 $ 11,247,550 $ 14,500,757 $ 15,147,553 $15,191,381 § 16,640,918
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
1999 2000 2001 2002

Revenues
Property and other county tax $ 16,485,601 §$ 15,691,970 § 16,915,077 § 18,854,815
interest and Penalties on property tax 244,714 233,993 299,357 368,495
Intergovernmental 16,584,675 16,167,235 15,430,337 15,267,422
Licenses and permits 111,360 307,619 269,731 28,500
Charges for services 1,421,490 1,686,566 1,734,386 2,677,802
Use of money and property 1,087,010 1,084,603 1,210,920 835,421
Miscellaneous 2,416,486 417 526 827,333 802,639
Total Revenue 38,351,336 35,599,512 36,696,141 38,835,094
Expenditures
Public safety and legal services 8,182,826 7,394,607 8,817,260 9,271,959
Physical health and social services 3,581,161 5,938,909 3,668,234 3,787,406
Mental health 7,777,431 7,056,629 8,938,930 8,732,958
County environment and education 1,241,286 1,223,125 1,370,069 1,339,882
Roads and fransportation 4,856,049 5,133,076 5,746,097 5,531,533
Government services to residents 1,397,378 1,374,611 1,433,589 1,557,913
Administration 4,143,102 4,174,611 3,868,931 4,433,185
Non-program 48,130 263,850 8,460 -
Capital projects 4,878,177 3,535,337 1,004,327 3,802,429
Debt service:

Principal 1,801,000 1,601,000 1,621,320 375,136

interest 187,527 212,585 125,283 58,464
Total expenditures 38,004,067 37,908,340 36,692,500 38,890,865
Excess of revenues over (under)

expenditures 257,269 (2,308,828) 3,641 {65771)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds - 800,000 - -
Discounts on bonds issued - - - -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - - -
Transfers in 1,350,418 4,432,173 900,815 1,502,212
Transfers out {1,350,418) {(4,432,173) (900,815) {1,752,212)
Total other financing sources (uses) - 800,000 - (250,000)
Net change in fund balance $ 257,269 $ (1,508,828) § 3,641 §  (305,771)
Debt services as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures 5.99% 5.28% 4.91% 1.24%
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Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
$ 19277192 $ 22,505,491 §$ 23565641 $ 24245709 $ 26,066,941 25,199,990
307,530 312,619 330,145 352,502 581,589 322,586
17,632,104 14,939,630 14,909,456 15,857,143 16,162,639 19,711,354
53,810 45,399 76,309 43,625 53,216 45,565
1,914,669 1,896,565 2,095,478 1,958,853 1,931,126 1,914,414
712,463 772,396 1,061,153 1,355,047 1,654,618 1,444,784
644,291 752,558 550,243 522,366 339,207 397,847
40,542,059 41,314,658 42588425 44335245 46,789,336 49,036,540
9,218,087 10,106,684 10,040,910 10,060,286 11,190,623 11,743,792
3,950,349 3,845,197 3,811,978 4,210,688 4,305,209 4,919,034
8,674,850 9,023,345 9,868,766 0,832,736 11,470,835 11,442,958
1,226,646 2,025,344 1,548,295 1,680,315 1,796,918 1,914,243
5,303,890 5,812,026 5,691,363 6,382,421 6,618,403 7,182,680
1,593,758 1,613,380 1,787,425 2,366,767 1,824,173 1,825,833
4,985,309 5,048,182 5,439,936 5,938,003 5,898,240 6,072,630
- 57,770 65,088 25,417 52,755 12,828
5,373,398 2,863,223 2,417,142 2,630,752 2,941,082 2,649,197
474,143 653,350 332,768 400,000 560,000 560,000
93,410 78,944 70,954 61,064 87,270 63,808
40,893,840 41,127,445 41,075,525 44,488,449 46,745,508 48,387,003
(351,781) 187,213 1,512,900 (153,204) 43,828 649,537
800,000 - 800,000 800,000 - 800,000

- - (3,157) - . -

- - 236,000 - - -
1,664,378 1,361,093 1,339,061 885,847 979,563 949,365
(1,664,630)  (1,361,093)  (1,339,061) (885,847) (979,563) (949,365)
799,748 - 1,032,843 800,000 . 800,000

$ 447967 $ 187213 $ 2545743 $ 646,796 43828 $ 1,449,537
1.60% 1.91% 1.04% 1.10% 1.48% 1.42%
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IUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
sessed and Taxable Value of Taxable Property
it Ten Fiscal Years

Real Property Utilities
Taxable Assessed Taxable Assessed
Fiscal Year Value Value (1) Value Value (1)
1998-99 2,019,963653 § 3,032,444615 § 493,745,979 $ 493,831,911
1998-00 2,137,113,985 3,082,888,376 452,161,145 452,161,145
2000-01 2,225,609,691 3,271,523,515 406,766,276 414,972,768
2001-02 2,347,104,850 3,653,826,501 414,355,058 424,318,776
2002-03 2,361,480,498 3,568,462,321 412,418,813 412,418,813
2003-04 2,423,083,512 3,612,953,938 427,304,116 427,304,116
2004-05 2,350,482,046 3,659,429,827 419,533,795 417,298,056
2005-06 2,418,587,905 3,718,089,212 384,948 877 420,225,509
2006-07 2,536,790,541 4,022,369,837 400,322,060 458,126,041
2007-08 2,577,315,629 4,086,633,915 381,413,580 477,559,674

Assessed value equals estimated actual value.

irce: Woodbury County Auditor's Office
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Total Ratio of Tax Increment
Total Direct Taxable to Financing

Taxable Assessed Tax Assessed District

Value Value (1) Rate Value Values
$ 2,5613,709,632 § 3,526,276,526 $6.115 71.3% § 275,937,804
2,589,275,130 3,535,049,521 6.270 73.2% 262,828,414
2,632,375,967 3,686,496,283  6.317 71.4% 271,311,462
2,761,459,708 4,078,145,277  6.877 67.7% 284,542,373
2,773,899,311 3,980,881,134  6.920 69.7% 299,670,045
2,850,387,628 4,040,258,054  7.109 70.5% 267,861,080
2,770,015,841 4,076,727,883  7.660 67.9% 319,579,762
2,803,536,782 4,1398,314,811 7.691 67.7% 240,037,774
2,937,112,601 4,480,495,878  7.778 65.6% 318,711,679
2,858,729,209 4,564,193,489  8.004 64.8% 316,224,453
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

Property Tax Rates per $1,000 Taxable Valuation-
All Direct and Qverlapping Governments

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Cities
Sioux City
Sergeant Lawion- Correction-
Stoux City Bluff Bronson Anthon Bronson ville Cushing Danbury
2007-08
City 18.47293 18.47293 18.47293 4.99506 9.44305 877768 9.09299 6.33079
Area 12 - WIT 0.73555 0.73855 0.73555 0.735565 6.73555 0.73585 0.73555 (.73555
School District 17.51815 13.55624 16.93620 13.65997 16.9369 14.00035 14.00035 13.94164
State 0.00359 0.00350 0.00350 0.00350 0.60350 0.00350 0.00350 0.00350
Ag Extension 0.12472 0.12472 0.12472 0.12472 0.12472 0.12472 0.12472 0.12472
Assessor (1) 0.48519 0.48519 0.48519 0.54876 0.54876 0.54876 0.54876 0.54876
County 8.00383 8.00383 8.00383 8.00383 8.00383 §.00383 8.00383 8.00383
Total Levy 4534487 4138196 4476262  28.07229  35.79631  32.19439 32.5697  20.68879
Ratio of Woodbury
County to Totals 17.658% 18.819% 18.614%  30.500%  23.748%  25.129%  24.524%  26.375%
2006-07
City 1825452  18.25452 1825452 2.58569 9.23079 7.96205 B.72671 6.5354¢
Area 12 - WIT 0.70282 0.70282 0.70282 0.70282 0.70282 0.70282 0.70282 0.70282
Schoot District 16.76848  14.05184 1450661 13.90063  14.50661 13.97438  13.97438 13.93889
State 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 £.00400 6.00400 $.00400
Ag Extension 0.05134 0.06134 0.05134 0.05134 0.05134 8.05134 0.05134 0.05134
Assessor (1} 0.48714 0.48714 0.48714 (.47872 0.47872 0.47872 0.47872 0.47872
County 7.77784 7.77784 7.77784 777784 7.77784 7.77784 777784 7.77784
Total Levy 44.04614 41.3295 41.78427 2550104  32.Y5212  30.95115  31.71581 29.4801
Ratio of Woodbury
County o Totals 17.656% 18.819% 18.614%  30.500%  23.748%  2B.128%  24.524%  26.375%
2005-06
City 1787073 17.97073  17.97073 2.58971 9.82632 7.92160 8.10000 6.00104
Area 12 - WIT 0.69873 0.69873 0.69873 0.69873 0.69873 0.69873 0.69873 0.69873
School District 17.49975  13.09655  14.46679  13.73622 14.46679  15.29650 15.29650  13.65815
State 0.00400 0.00400C 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400
Ag Extension 0.05377 0.05377 0.05377 0.05377 0.05377 0.05377 0.05377 0.06377
Assessor (1) 0.42649 0.42649 0.42649 0.52847 0.52847 0.52847 0.52847 0.52847
County 7.69141 7.68141 7.69141 7.69141 7.69141 7.69141 7.69141 7.69141
Total Levy 44.34488  39.94168 41.31192 2530231 33.26949 32.19448  32.37288  28,63557
Ratio of Woodbury
County to Totals 17.345% 19.257% 18.618%  30.398%  23.119%  23.890%  23.7589%  26.860%
2004-05
City 17.78712  17.78712  17.78712 2.51489 8.85913 7.79802 9.12747 563206
Area 12 - WIT 0.67204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204
School District 17.01647  12.50354  14.75085  13.88487  14.75085  15.68581 1568581  13.55230
State 0.00400 0.00400 0.004060 0.00400 0.60400 0.00400 0.00400 $.00400
Ag Extension 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442
Assessor (1) 0.43134 0.43134 0.43134 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.83651 0.53651
County 7.65283 7.65983 7.65983 7.65983 7.65983 7.65883 7.65983 7.65983
Total Levy 43.52522  30.01220  41.25060 2522656  33.43678 32.31163  33.63978  28.01116
Ratio of Woodbury
County fo Totals 17.589% 19.634% 18.565%  30.364%  22.908%  23.706%  22.770%  27.346%
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Cities

Sergeant
Hornick Lawton Moville Qto Pierson Salix Biuff Sloan Smithiand
8.09151 8.37221 10.10955 8.10000 16.40605 8.10000 13.55165 8.8207 8.09872
0.73555 0.73555 0.73555 0.73555 0.73565 0.73555 0.73555 0.73555 0.73555
13.27716 16.9369 15.20484  13.65997 16.48702 13.27716  13.55624 13.27716  13.27716
$.00350 0.00350 0.00350 0.00350 0.00350 0.00350 0.00350 0.00350 ¢.00350
0.12472 0.12472 0.12472 0.12472 0.12472 0.12472 0.12472 0.12472 0.12472
0.54876 0.54876 0.54876 0.54876 0.548786 0.54876 0.54876 0.54876 0.54876
8.00383 8.00383 8.00383 8.00383 8.00383 8.00383 8.00383 8.00383 8.00383
30.78503  34.72557 34.73075  31.17633 4230943  30.78352 36.52425  31.51422  30.79224
26.111% 24.143% 23.230% 25.077% 18.276% 26.100% 22.547% 25.260% 26.112%
8.08823 8.69398 10.13791 8.10000 16.96015 8.10000 11.43009 9.09165 8.08688
0.70282 0.70282 0.70282 0.70282 0.70282 0.70282 0.70282 0.70282 0.70282
12.68504 14.50661 14.32941 1300063 16.58345 12.68504  14.05184  12.68504 12.68504
0.00400 0.00400 0.60400 0.00400 0.00400 {.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400
0.05134 0.05134 0.05134 0.05134 0.05134 0.05134 0.05134 0.05134 0.05134
0.47872 0.47872 0.47872 0.47872 0.47872 0.47872 0.47872 0.47872 0.47872
7.77784 777784 7.77784 7.77784 7.77784 7.77784 777784 7.77784 777784
28.78799  32.21531 3348204  31.01535 42.55832 2079976  34.49665  30.79141 29.78664
26.111% 24.143% 23.230% 25.077% 18.276% 26.100% 22.547% 25.260% 26.112%
7.98269 9.03990 8.10000 8.1000C0 16.27667 8.10000  11.54978 8.10600 8.09152
0.69873 0.69873 0.69873 0.69873 0.69873 0.69873 0.69873 0.69873 0.69873
14,24156 14.46678  14.88721% 13.73622 15.96930 14.24156  13.08655 1424156 1424156
0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.06400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00450 0.00400 0.00400
0.05377 0.05377 0.05377 0.05377 0.05377 0.05377 0.05377 0.05377 0.05377
0.52847 0.52847 0.52847 0.52847 0.52847 0.52847 0.52847 0.52847 0.52847
7.69141 7.69141 7.69141 7.69141 7.69141 7.69141% 7.69141 7.69141 7.69141
31.20063  32.48307 31.968359  30.81260 41.22235 3131794  33.62271 31.31794  31.30946
24.651% 23.678% 24.063% 24.962% 18.658% 24.559% 22.876% 24.559% 24.566%
7.99182 9.22985 8.10000 8.10000  15.84826 8.09927  11.09292 8.09988 8.09937
0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204
15.48845 14.75085  14.87324 13.88487  15.81554  15.48845 1250354  15.48845  15.48845
0.00400 0.03400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400
0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442
0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651
7.65983 7.65983 7.65983 7.65983 7.65983 7.65983 7.66983 7.65983 7.65983
32.30707  32.80750  31.80004  30.81167  40.49060 3241452 3242326 3241513 3241462
23.709% 23.348% 24.087% 24.860% 18.918% 23.631% 23.624% 23.630% 23.631%
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

Property Tax Rates per $1,000 Taxable Valuation-

All Direct and Overlapping Governments {Continued)
l.ast Ten Fiscal Years

Cities
Sioux City
Sergeant Lawton- Correction-
Sioux City Bluff Bronson Anthon Bronson ville Cushing Danbury
2003-04
City 16.43302 16.43302 16.43302 5.030861 8.10000 7.71406 8.10000 5.73555
Area 12 - WIT 0.54141 0.54141 6.54141 0.54141 0.54141% 0.54141 0.54141 0.54141
Schoal District 16.15094  12.48719  13.74153  12.79993  13.74153  14.80987 14.80987 12.68501%
State 0.00400 0.00400 0.30400 0.00400 0.00400 6.00400 0.00400 0.00400
Ag Exiension 0.05262 0.05262 0.05262 0.05262 0.05262 0.05262 0.05262 0.05262
Assessor (1) 0.58235 0.58235 0.58235 0.36902 0.36902 0.36902 0.36902 0.36902
County 7.10894 7.10894 7.10804 7.10894 7.10894 7.10894 7.10894 7.10894
Total Levy 40.87328 37.20963 3846387 2500853 2001752  30.59992  30.98586  26.50655
Ratio of Woodbury
County to Totals 17.393% 19.105% 18.482%  27.441%  23.762%  23.232%  22.943%  26.820%
2062-03
City 16.00121  16.00121  16.00121 5.04262 7.83618 6.56092 7.78231 5.61288
Area 12 - WIT 0.94432 §.94432 0.94432 0.94432 0.94432 0.94432 0.94432 0.94432
School District 16.77004  12.87481  13.14890  12.00936  13.14890  13.92765  13.92765  11.50909
State 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.0040¢ 0.00400 0.00400
Ag Extension 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407
Assessor (1) 0.52006 0.52008 0.52006 0.39285 0.39285 0.39285 0.39285 0.39285
County 6.92037 6.92037 6.82037 6.82037 6.92037 6.92037 6.92037 6.92037
Total Levy 40.21407  37.31884  37.58293 2536759  29.30069  28.80418  30.02557  25.43758
Ratio of Woodbury
County to Totals 17.209%  18.544% 18.400%  27.280%  23.618%  24.026%  23.048%  27.205%
2001-02
City 1440583  14.40683  14.40683 524712 7.52391 6.89671 8.10000 5.10609
Area 12 - WIT 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121
School Disfrict 14.43527  12.86012  14.18902  10.72085 14.18902  14.59437  14.59437 10.11545
State 0.03500 £.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.60500 0.00500 0.00500
Ag Extension 0.05432 6.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432
Assessor (1) 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45603 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003
County 6.86754 6.86754 6.86754 6.86754 6.86754 6.86754 6.86754 6.86754
Total Levy 36.83920  35.26505  36.59395  23.96607 280.71103 2048918 30.68247 23.21964
Ratio of Woodbury
County to Totals 18.642%  19.474% 18.767%  2B.655%  23.114%  23.288%  22.375%  20.576%
2000-01:
City 14.40724 1440724  14.40724 5.45879 8,10000 7.81323 8.10000 4.94543
Area 12 - WIT 0.60985 0.60985 0.60985 0.60985 0.60985 0.60885 0.60985 0.60985
School District 14.69557  13.85137 1492109 1017437  14.92109  14.28511  14.28511  10.20892
State 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500
Ag Extension 0.05698 0.05698 0.05698 0.05698 0.05698 0.05698 £.05608 0.05698
Assessor (1) 0.53943 0.53943 0.53943 0.60891 0.60881 0.60891 0.60891 0.60891
County 6.31704 6.31704 6.31704 6.31704 6.31704 6.31704 6.31704 6.31704
Total Levy 36.63111 3578691  36.85663  23.23004 3061887  29.69612 29.98289 22.75213
Ratic of Woodbury
County to Totals 17.245% 17.652%  17.139%  27.192%  20.631%  21.272%  21.0689%  27.7656%
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Cities

Sergeant
Hornick Lawton Moville Qto Pierson Salix Bluff Sloan Smithland
8.10000 8.10000 8.10000 8.10000 15.26126 8.10000 10.89098 8,00963 7.43673
0.54141 0.54141 0.54141 0.54141 0.54141 0.54141 0.54141 0.54141 .54141
13.88538 13.74153 13.30994 12.79993 13.77779 13.88538 12.48719 13.88538 13.88538
0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 £.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400
0.05262 0.05262 0.06262 0.05262 0.05262 $.05262 0.05262 0.05262 0.05262
0.36902 0.36902 0.36902 0.36802 0.36802 (.36902 0.36902 0.36902 0.36902
7.10894 7.10894 7.10894 7.10894 7.10894 7.10894 7.10894 7.10894 7.10894
30.06137 2991752 29.48503 2897592  37.11504 30.06137 31.45418 30.06100 29.39810
23.648% 23.762% 24.110% 24.534% 19.154% 23.648% 22.601% 23.648% 24.182%
7.62991 7.83103 9.71278 777795 1466528 7.79675 8.99646 7.75284 7.32688
0.94432 0.94432 0.94432 0.94432 0.94432 0.94432 0.84432 0.94432 0.94432
12.85035 1314890  13.38997 12.00036  13.12967 12.85035 12.87481 12.850356 12.85035
0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 (.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400
0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407
0.39285 0.39285 0.39285 0.39285 0.39285 (.39285 0.39285 0.39285 0.39285
6.92037 6.92037 6.92037 6.92037 6.92037 $.92037 6.92037 8,02037 6.92037
2B.79587  20,29554  31.41836 2810292 36.11056  28.96271 30.18688 2891880  28.40284
24.033% 23.623% 22.027%  24.625% 19.164% 23.884% 22.925% 23.930% 24.288%
6.74718 8.10000 10.15526 8.10000 14.50504 8.10000 7.94889 8.09988 6.37534
0.62121 0.62121% 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121
12.40780 1418802  13.83426 1072085 13.34784 1240780 12.86012 1240780  12.40780
0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.60500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500
(.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432
0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003
§.86754 6.86754 6,86754 6.86754 6.86754 6.86754 6.86754 6.86754 6,86754
2715308  30.28712 31.78762 26.81895  35.85008 2850590 28.80711 2850578  26.78124
25.292% 22.675% 21.604%  25.607% 19.156% 24.092% 23.840% 24.092% 25.643%
6.81096 8.10000 8.09986 8.10000 9.55846 §.09302 7.44890 8.01419 6.74988
0.60985 0.60985 0.60985 0.60985 0.60085 0.60985 0.60985 0.60985 0.60985
11.35249 14.92109 13.70285 10.17437 12.28324 11.35249 13.85137 11.35249 11.35249
0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.60500 0.60500 0.00500
0.05698 (.05698 0.05698 0.05698 0.05698 (.05698 0.05698 (.05698 0.05698
0.60891 0.60891 0.60891 0.60891 0.60891 0.60891 0.60891 0.60891 0.60891
6.31704 6.31704 6.31704 6.31704 6.31704 6.31704 6.31704 §.31704 6.31704
25.76123 30.61887 29.40049 2587215 29.43048 27.04329  28.89805 26.96446  25.70013
24.521% 20.631% 21.486% 24416%  21.458% 23.359% 21.860%  23.427% 24.580%
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

Property Tax Rates per $1,000 Taxahle Valuation-

All Direct and Overlapping Governments {(Continued})
l.ast Ten Fiscal Years

Cities
Sioux City
Sergeant Lawion- Correclion-
Sicux City Bluff Bronson Anthon Bronson ville Cushing Danbury
1999-00:
City 13.94690  13.946580  13.94690 5.48506 8.10000 7.86480 8.10000 5.03341
Area 12 - WIT 0.55951 0.55851 (0.55951 0.55951 0.55951 0.55851 0.559851 0.55951
School District 13.64809  12.76388  14.63905 920058 1463905  13.25076  13.95076  10.04426
State 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00&00 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500
Ag Extension 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807
Assessor (1) 0.52601 0.52601 0.52601 0.42119 6.42119 0.42119 0.42119 0.42119
County 6.27007 6.27007 6.27007 6.27007 6.27007 6.27007 6.27007 6.27007
Total Levy 3501365  34.12944  36.00461  22.0084%  30.05289 29.12940 29.36460 22,39151
Ratio of Woadbury
County to Totals 17.908% 18.371% 17.415% 28.373% 20.863% 21.525% 21.352% 28.002%
1998-99:
City 1398384  13.98384  13.08384 7.69809 8.10000 7.88715 8.10000 5.21091
Area 12 - WIT 0.69518 0.59515 0.59515 0.59515 0.69515 0.59515 0.59518 0.69515
School Disfrict 1430640  13.08248 1524642 1287608 1524642 12.65826  12.65826  10.3397¢6
State 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.60500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500
Ag Extension 0.05982 0.05982 0.05982 0.05982 0.05982 0.05982 0.05982 (.05982
Assessor (1) 0.46362 0.46362 0.46362 0.48579 0.48579 .48579 0.48579 0.48579
County 6.11533 6.11533 6.115633 6.11533 6.11533 6.11533 6.11533 5.11533
Total Levy 35652916 34.30524 3646918  27.83526  30.60751 27.80650 28.01935 22.81178
Ratio of Woodbury
County to Totals 17.212% 17.826% 16.768% 21.870% 19.280% 21.892% 21.825% 26.808%

{1} City assessor only for Sioux City while rest of Cities are by the County Assessor.

All tax rates are expressed in dollars per thousand of taxable values

Included in this report are all of the incorporated cities and towns within Woodbury County.

Not shown are the Rural Basic Fund of the County and the following taxing bodies over and above the cities listed:

a. 25 townships

Source: Woodbury County Auditor's Office
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Cities

Sergeant
Haornick Lawton Movitle Oto Pierson Salix Biuff Sloan Smithland
6.08211 8.10000 8.10001 8.10000 9.55849 8.00149 7.44522 7.80272 6.74631
0.55951 0.55951 0.55951 0.55951 0.55951 0.55951 0.55951 .55951 0.550981
10.82237 14.63905  13.44953 9.29059  12.72397  10.82237 12.76388  10.82237  10.82237
0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500
0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 £.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807
0.42119 0.42119 0.42119 0.42119 0.42119 0.42119 0.42119 0.42119 0.42119
6.27007 6.27007 6.27007 6.27007 8.27007 6.27007 6.270G7 6.27007 §.27007
2421832  30.05289  28.86338  24.71343 2959630 2622770 27.52294 2593893 24.88252
25.890% 20.863% 21.723% 25.371% 21.185% 23.906% 22.781% 24.172% 25.199%
6.29456 8.10000 7.79899 8.10000 9.36209 7.92490 7.44522 7.79998 6.75863
0.59515 0.58515 0.59515 0.59515 0.59515 0.59515 0.59515 0.59515 0.59515
10.91035  15.24642  14.25197 12.87608 13.30233 110.91035 13.08248 10.91035  10.91035
0.00500 (.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500
0.05982 0.05982 0.05982 0.05982 0.05982 0.05982 0.05982 0.05982 0.05982
0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579
6.11533 6.11533 6.11533 6.11533 8.11533 6.11533 6.11533 6.11533 6.11533
24.46600  30.60751 2031305 28.23717 20.92551 2609634 27.78879 2597143  24.93007
24.995% 19.980% 20.862% 21.657% 20.435% 23.434% 22.006% 23.546% 24.530%
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Fiscal Year 2008 Fiscal Year 1999
% of Total % of Total

Assessed County Taxable Assessed County Taxable
Taxpayer Value Rank Assessed Value Value Rank Assessed Value
Midamerican Energy $ 266,764,157 1 5.56% $ 318,728460 1 12.31%
Southern Hills Mall L.1.C 72,896,723 2 1.52% 55,971,700 2 2,16%
Lakeport Commens LLC 31,618,082 3 0.66% - - 0.00%
Wal-Mart Real Estate 27,632,125 4 0.58% - - 0.00%
Qwest Corp. 22,369,183 5 0.47% 22830449 3 0.88%
Interstate Power Co. 20,424,246 6 0.43% 10,259,410 10 0.40%
Northwestern Public Serv. 20,119,344 7 0.42% - - 0.00%
Davies lowa Logistics 18,070,596 8 0.38% 19,643,439 4 0.77%
Handy LC 15,274,780 9 0.32% - - 0.00%
Klinger Properties 12,565,733 10 0.26% 18,222,538 5 0.70%
St Lukes Medical Center - - - 16,524,233 6 0.64%
IES Utilities - - - 14,676,168 7 0.57%
Cargill Inc. - - - 14,178,800 8 0.55%
American Telephone - - - 12,292,714 9 0.47%
Total ] 507,734,969 10.58% $ 503,527,911 19.45%
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OUNTY OF WOODBURY, iOWA
‘operty Tax Levies and Collections
st Ten Fiscal Years

Percent Delinquent
Total Current Tax of Levy Tax

Fiscal Year Tax Levy (1) Collections Collected Collections
1998-99 85,044,789 $ 83,083,643 97.69% § 164,610
1999-00 88,357,301 88,127,571 99.74% 145,700
2000-01 90,713,545 90,350,691 99.60% 186,750
2001-02 94,440,292 94,173,814 9%.71% 46,127
2002-03 96,997,001 95,627,720 98.59% -
2003-04 101,260,365 100,522,671 899.27% 384,504
2004-05 105,136,654 104,664,614 99.55% 69,327
2005-06 109,010,244 108,247,172 99.30% 112,000
2006-07 113,192,439 112,230,303 99.15% 420,713
2007-08 128,111,027 127,754,228 99.72% 162,715
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Includes all taxing governments within Woodbury County for which Woodbury County
serves as an agent for tax collections.



Total Total

Collections Belinguent Woodbury
Total as Percent Outstanding as Percent County-Only
Tax of Current Delinquent of Current Property Tax

Collections Levy Taxes Levy Collections
$ 83,248,253 97.89% § 338,460 0.40% $ 16,470,609
88,273,272 99.90% 143,675 0.16% 16,619,206
90,537,441 99.81% 123,737 0.14% 16,903,369
94,219,941 99.76% 180,465 0.19% 18,852,434
95,627,720 98.59% 549,359 3.57% 19,302,914
100,907,175 99.65% 504,145 0.50% 20,583,477
104,733,041 99.62% 601,810 0.57% 22,261,009
108,359,172 99.40% 601,810 0.55% 24,245,709
112,651,016 99.52% 570,695 0.50% 24,356,605
127,916,943 99.85% 163,529 0.12% 25,280,694
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General
Obligation Percent
Bonded Debt Debt to Debt Percentage of
Outstanding Assessed Assessed Estimated Per Personal
Fiscal Year {1) Values Value Population Capita Income
1998-99 $ 4,276,028 5 3,526,276,526 0.12% 101,672 42.06 3.38%
1999-00 2,896,717  3,535,049,521 0.08% 101,672 28.49 1.53%
2000-01 1,275,397 3,686,496,283 0.03% 103,877 12.28 0.66%
2001-02 1,700,259  4,078,145,277 0.04% 103,877 16.37 0.88%
2002-03 2,026,116  3,987,300,079 0.05% 103,877 19.50 1.05%
2003-04 1,372,766  4,648,688,298 0.03% 103,877 13.22 0.71%
2004-05 1,840,000  4,396,307,645 0.04% 103,877 17.71 0.94%
2005-08 2,240,000  4,474,738,466 0.05% 102,605 21.82 1.15%
2006-07 1,680,000 4,799,207,657 0.04% 102,972 16.31 1.12%
2007-08 1,920,000  4,891,460,492 0.04% 102,972 18.65 1.13%

(1) The fund balance of the debt service fund has been excluded due to the immateriality of such halances.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Legal Debt margin Information

L.ast Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
1999 2000 2001 2002

Assessed Value of Property (1) $ 3,802,214,330 $ 3,797,877,835 $3,957,807,745 §$4,078,145,277
Debt limit, 5% of Assessed Value 190,110,717 189,893,897 197,890,387 203,907,264
(Statutory Lirmitation)
Amount of Debt Appiicable to Limit
General Obligation Bonds 4,276,028 2,475,000 1,275,395 1,700,259
l.ess: Resources Restricted to

Paying Principal (273,825) {82,348) (126,377) {135,461)
Total net debt applicabfe to limit 4,002,203 2,392,652 1,149,018 1,564,798
Legal Debt Margin $ 186,108,514 $ 187,501,245 § 196,741,369 § 202,342,466
Total net debt applicable to the fimit

2.11% 1.26% 0.58% 0.77%

as a percentage of debt limit

{1) Includes tax increment vaiues
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Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
$4,280,551,179 $4,308,119,134 $4,396,307,645 §$4,474,738,466 $4,799,207,557 § 4,891,460,492

214,027,559 215,405,957 219,815,382 223,736,923 239,960,378 244,573,025

2,026,116 1,280,000 1,840,000 2,240,000 1,680,000 1,920,600
(97,454) {224,409) (227,108) {251,039) (260,403) {261,478)
1,928,662 1,055,591 1,612,891 1,888,961 1,419,597 1,658,522

$ 212,098,807 § 214,350,366 § 218,202,491 § 221,747,962 § 238,540,781 § 242,914,503

0.90% 0.49% 0.73% 0.89% 0.59% 0.68%
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Demographic and Economic Statistics
L.ast Ten Fiscal Years

Per Capita
tstimated Personal Incomeb Personal School Unemployment
Year Population (in thousands) income a  Enroflment Rate ¢
1997-98 102,580 % 1265734 $ 12,339 23,320 2.6%
1998-99 101,672 1,265,734 12,339 23,262 2.7%
19969-00 101,437 1,893,423 18,666 23,144 2.8%
2000-01 103,877 1,938,968 18,666 23,175 2.9%
2001-02 103,877 1,938,968 18,666 23,210 3.1%
2002-03 103,331 1,928,776 18,666 22,978 3.7%
2003-04 103,877 1,928,776 18,666 23,315 5.4%
2004-05 103,877 1,967,846 18,944 23,235 4.5%
2005-06 102,605 1,943,749 18,944 23,789 3.7%
2006-07 102,972 2,148,923 20,869 22,655 3.7%
2007-08 102,972 2,224,135 21,599 22,865 3.6%
Notes:

a - City of Sioux City Comprehensive Plan Publication "My Home, Our Neighborhood, Everybody's
Hometown" for years 1997-2004; lowa Workforce Development Website years 2005-2008

b - Computation of per capita personal income multipfied by poputation

¢ - lowa Workforce Development Website
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, {OWA
Principal Employers
Current Year (1)

2008
% of Total City

Employer Employees Rank Employment

Tyson Fresh Meats 4,400 1 16.03%
Mercy Medical Center 2,000 2 7.29%
Sioux City Schools 1,500 3 5.46%
185th lowa Air National 1,400 4 5.10%
St. Lukes Hospital 1,300 5 4.74%
John Morrell 1,300 6 4.74%
City of Sioux City 1,085 7 3.95%
Western lowa Tech 706 8 2.57%
Midamerican Energy 659 9 2.40%
TurPac 500 10 1.82%
Total Principal Employers 14,850 35.00%

Source: lowa Department of Workforce Development

{1} - Comparative data for nine years ago not currently available.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Full-time Equivalent County Government Employees by Function

Last Three Fiscal Years (1)

Fiscal Year
Function/Program 2006 2007 2008
Public safety and legal services 133 142 152
Physical health and social services 34 36 65
Mental health 12 12 13
County environment and education 40 52 69
Roads and transportation 59 58 51
Government services to residents 37 20 45
Administration 33 48 43
Total 348 368 438

Note: A full-time employee is scheduled to work 261 days per year (365 minus two days off per week).
At eight hours per day, 2,088 hours are scheduled per year {including vacation and sick leave).
Full-time-equivalent employment is calculated by dividing {otal labor hours by 2,088,

{1) - The information for years prior to 2006 is not readily available.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Operating Indicators by Function
Last Three Fiscal Years (1)

Fiscal Year
Function/Program 2006 2007 2008
Public safety and legal services
Jail bookings 8,949 9,054 9,154
Average daily population 242 231 201
Mental health
Center days of care * * *
County environment and education
Camping nights 34,250 34,633 35,672
Roads and transportation
Miles of secondary roads mainitained:
County 1,349 1,349 1,341
State 108 108 108

(1) - The information for years prior to 2006 is not readily available.

* - The information is not readily available.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Three Fiscal Years (1)

Function/Program

Public safety and legal services
Correction facility capacities

County environment and education
Number of county parks
Park Acreage:
Developed
Undeveloped
County golf courses
Ice arenas
Nature center

Roads and transportation
Miles of county roads
Traffic signals
Bridges

Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008
238 238 238
20 20 20
700 738 745
4,492 4,665 4,725
1 1 1
1,400 1,343 1,341
308 308 308

{1} - The information for years prior to 2006 is not readily available.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS {CASH BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Pass-through

Federal Grantor's
Federal Grantor CFDA jdentifying Federal
Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agricuiture:
Direct:
Watershed Protection and Flood Prevention 10.904 69-8114-8-11 $ 8,334
Passed through the lowa Department of Human Services:
Food Stamp Program 10.561 74,361
Passed through the Department of Natural Services,
Hungry Canyons Alliance:
Soil and Water Conservation 10.802 EWP079(2)/06-19-F 33,102
' EWP02(5)/06-7-F 55,260
L-C01(2)/07-9-F 21,935
162,992
U.S. Department of Justice;
Direct:
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 16.608 120,443
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 834
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2005-DJ-BX-0436 19,783
2007-DJ-BX-0436 56,517
Passed through the Governor's Office of Drug Control Policy:
Community Prosecution and Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 038-NDO3 11,711
06-N[203 503
08-PSNAG-NDO3 8,932
Passed through the Governor's Alliance on Substance Abuse:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 07JAG/COG-A0G 87,097
305,820
U.S. Department of Transportation,
National Highway Safety Administration:
Passed through the lowa Dept of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 BROS-CO97-(70)--8J-97 856
BROS-CO97-(71)--8J-97 1,776
BROS-CQ97-(72)--8J-97 17
BRQOS-C0O97-(82)--8J-97 86,295
Passed through lowa Department of Public Safety-
Governor's Traffic Safety Division:
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 PAP 07.02 TASK 6 5072
PAP 08-02 TASK 6 6,986
Safety Incentives to Prevent Qperation of Motor Vehicles
20.608 PAP 07-183 TASK 89 4,601

by Intoxicated Persons
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CASH BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Pass-through

Federal Grantor's
Federal Grantor CFDA {dentifying Federal
Pass-Through Grantor/Program Tifle Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed through the lowa Department of Human Services:
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 5 557,147
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 102,821
State Children's Insurance Program 93.767 672
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 53,000
Temporary Assistance for Needy Famities 83.558 80,792
Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 47,529
Adoption Assistance 93.859 11,295
Childd Care Develepment Fund 93.596 19,684
Child Support Enforcement $3.563 2,254
Fassed through the lowa Department of Public Heaith:
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program 93.889 5888EM197 1,524
876,718
U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Passed through lowa Disaster Services Division;
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 39,000
Passed through the fowa Homeland Security and
Emergency Management Division:
Homeland Security Grant Program §7.067 2006-GE-T6-0065-003 465,670
Hometand Security Grant Program 97.067  FY2005-LETPP-LEIN1-01 22,831
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 FY2008-LETPP-LEINT-01 298,139
825,640
$ 2306773

Total expenditure of federal awards
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CASH BASIS)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Pass-through

Federal Grantor's
Federal Granior CFDA Identifying Federal
Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Component Unit
U.S, Department of Agriculture:
Passed through the lowa Department of Heafth:
Spedial Supplemental Nutrition Pragram for
Women, Infants, and Children 10.557 5887A049 § 167,658
5888A049 371,578
539,236
U.S. Department of Human Services:
Passed through the lowa Department of Health:
Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 5888BT09 195,415
5888BT03 72,679
Project Grants and Cooperative Agreements for
Tuberculosis Control Programs 93.116 MOUZ2008-TB0OY 4,225
Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Projects 93.197 5888LP09Y 32,387
Immunization Grants 93.268 58871415 24,365
58881483 16,893
Centers for Disease Contral and Prevention-
Investigations and Technical Assistance 93.283 5888NB24 43,812
5887BT09 87,291
58878T03 288,292
5888WW15 26,900
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 08-111 75,000
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program 93.889 58878109 12,983
5888BT09 33,316 -
HIV Prevention Activities - Health Department Based 93.940 5887AP11 3,491
5888AP11 6,990
924,039
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards {Component Unit) $ 1,463,275
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CASH BASIS) — (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity
of Woodbury County and its discretety presented component unit and is presented on the cash
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presentad in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Parti:  Summary of the Independent Auditor's Results
{a) Unqualified opinions were issued on the financial statements.
(b) Significant deficiencies in internal conirol over financial reporting were disclosed by the audit of
the financial statements, including material weaknesses.
{c) The audit did not disclose any noncompiiance which is material to the financial statements.
(d) The audit did not disclose any significant deficiencies in internal control over major programs,
(e) An unquatified opinion was issued on compliance with requirements applicable to each major
orogram.,
() The audit disclosed no findings which were required to be reported in accordance with Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Section .510{a).
(g) The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000.
{h) The County of Woodbury, towa, did not qualify as a low-risk auditee,
{iy The major programs identified on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards include:
CFDA # Program Name
93.283 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention —
Investigations and Technical Assistance
10.557 Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for
Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)
93.667 Social Services Block Grant
97.067 Homeland Security Grant Program
PartI: Findings Related fo the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government

Auditing Standards - None

SIGINIFICANT DEFICIENCIES:

1-A-08:

Computer System

Observation:  The Auditor and Treasurer's Offices operate on two separate financial
software systems. The dual system requires additional data entry because the systems
are not integrated. The receipts, as recorded in the Treasurer’s office, must be entered
manually by the auditor to facilitate financial reporting. In addition, the Assessor's office
uses a different property tax and valuation software than the Auditor/Treasurer's offices.
Each time a transaction or piece of information is handled manually the likelihood of an
error is increased.

Recommendation — The Caunty shouid consider converting fo one software package for
both financial reporting and property tax valuations. The potential for error with muitiple
systems should be eliminated and great efficiencies achieved.

Response and Corrective Action Plan — The County is aware of the issue and has put info
place procedures to minimize the risks that errors could occur. Due to political pressures
one uniform software package is not feasible at this time.

Conclusion — Response accepted.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2008

1I-B-08: Financial Reporting

Cbservation ~ During the audit, we identifled material amounts of recelvables, payables
and capital asset additions not recerded in the County’s financial statements. Adjustments
were subsequently made by the County to properly inciuded these amounts in the financial
statements.

Recommendation — The County should implement procedures to ensure all receivables,
payables and capital asset additions are identified and included in the County’s financial
statements.

Response — We will double check these in the future to avoid missing any receivables,
payables or capital asset transactions.

Conclusign — Response accepted

H-C-08: Record of Accounts

Qbservation — The Auditor's office maintains all accounting records for the County,
including the general ledger. However, trial balances for the preparation of the financial
statements are prepared on a cash basis outside of the general ledger system with
adjusting entries done for year-end accruals. The accrual basis trial balances are not
supported by the amounts in the general ledger.

Recommendation - For better accountability, financial and budgetary conirol, the financial
activity and balances of all accruals should be recerded in the County’s general ledger.

Responge - The County is reviewing procedures to solve this issue however with limited
personnel it may take significant time to ensure the general ledger is reconciled properly.

Conclusion - Response accepted

Part lli: Findings Related to Federal Expenditures — None.

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting

iV-A-08

IvV-B-08

Certified Budget — Dishursements for the year ended June 30, 2008, exceeded the
amounts budgeted in the roads and transpeortation and capital projects functions.

Recommendation — The budget should have been amended in accordance with Chapter
331.435 of the Code of lowa before dishursements were aflowed to exceed the budget.

Response — We will amend the budget when required in the future.
Conclusion ~ Response accepted,

Questionable Expenses —~ We noted no expenditures that we believe may constitute
unlawful expenditures from public funds as defined in an Attorney General's opinion dated
April 25, 1979,
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting (Continued)

WV-C-08

IvV-D-08

iV-E-08

V-F-08

IV-G-08

iV-H-08

IV-1-08

Travel Expenses — No expenditures of County money for trave! expenses of spouses of
County officials cr employees were noted.

Business Transactions — There were no business transactions between the County and
County officiais and/or employees during the year ended June 30, 2008

Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of County officials and employees is in
accordance with stafufory provisions.

Board Minutes ~ Interfund transfers were not approved in the minutes of the County in
accordance with Chapter 331.432 of the Code of lowa.

Recommendation - The County should document the approval of interfund transfers in the
minutes of the Board of Supervisors of the County in accordance with Chapter 331.432 of

the Code of lowa

Response ~ The County will ensure that approval of interfund transfers will be documented
in the minutes of the Board of Supervisors of the County.

Conclusion — Response accepted.

County Extension Office — The County Extensior Office is operated under the authority of
Chapter 176A of the Code of lowa and serves as an agency of the State of lowa. This fund
is administered by an extension council separate and distinet from the County operations
and, conseguently, is not included in these financial statements. Disbursements during the
year ended June 30, 2008 for the County Exiension Office did not exceed the amount

budgeted.

Resource Enhancement and Protection Certification - The County properly dedicated
property tax revenue to conservation purposes as required by Chapter 455A.19(1)(b) of the
Code of lowa in order to receive the additional REAP funds allocated in accordance with

subsecticns (b){2) and (b)(3).

Deposits _and Investments — No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and
investment provisions of Chapter 128 and 12C of the Code of lowa and the County’s

investment policy were noted.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2008

There were no prior year findings related to Federal Expenditures.
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Suite 700 Terra Centre
600 Fourth Street

'WILLIAMS,

& COMPANY:c Sioux City, 1A 51102-0298

Certified Public Accountants Phone (712) 252-5337

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Supervisors
Woodbury County, lowa:

Compliance:

We have audited the compliance of WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA (the County) and its discretely
presented component unit with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplernent that are applicable fo each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. Woodbury County, lowa and its discretely
presented component unit's major federal programs are identified in Part | of the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements applicable to each of its major federaf programs is the responsibility of the Gounty's,
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards,

the standards appiicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,

and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal

program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County's,

compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary

in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Qur audit

does not provide a legal determination of the County’'s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County and its discretely presented component unit complied, in all materiat respects,
with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2008.

internal Control Over Compliance:

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable fo federal
programs. [n planning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion an compliance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accerdingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Woodbury County, lowa's infernal

control over compliance.
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A controf deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of
a contral does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of confrol deficiencies,
that adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a
remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
more than inconsequential will not be prevented or defected by the entity's internal contral.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that resulis in
more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal controt,

Our consideration of internat confral over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above,

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees, and citizens of Woodbury County and other parties to whom Woodbury County may report,
including federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

(AJM - CB‘VY\M ,P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

Sioux City, lowa
December 22, 2008
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Suite 700 Terra Centre
600 Fourth Street

- 'WILLIAMS

& COMPANYrc Sioux City, 1A 51102-0298

Certified Public Accountants Phone (712) 252-5337

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
Woodbury County, lowa

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA and its discretely
presented component unit as of and for the year ended June 34, 2008, which collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements listed in the table of contents and have issued our report thereon
dated December 22, 2008. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Woodbury County, lowa's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Woodbury County, lowa's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingty, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Woodbury County, lowa’s internal controt over financial

reporting.

Our consideration of internal contral over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of the control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a fimely basis, A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control
deficiencies, that adversely effects Woodbury County, lowa's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process,
or report financial data reliably in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles such
that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of Woodbury County, lowa's financial
statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by Woodbury County,
lowa’s internal control. We consider the deficiencies in internat control described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 11-A-08 through [I-C-08 to be a significant deficiencies
in internal contrel over financiat reporting.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies that results in
more than a remote likelihood a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or
detected by the Woodbury County, lowa’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in

the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control
that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant
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deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe the significant
deficiencies described above are material weaknesses.

Compliance:
As part of abtaining reasonable assurance about whether Woodhury County, lowa's financial statements

are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, confracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial staterment amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the County’s operations for the year ended
June 30, 2008 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our audit
of the basic financial statements of the County. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not ali
fransactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those

statutes.

Woodbury County, lowa's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. While we have expressed our conclusions
on the County's responses, we did not audit Woodbury County, lowa's responses and, accordingly, we

express no opinion on them.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees, and citizens of Woodbury County and other parties to whom Woodbury County may report
including federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not intended to be and
should not be used by anvone other than those specified parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of

Woodbury County during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of
the above matters we would be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience. .

(/‘-J‘-*M"M'A) *W)P.C.

Certified Public Accountants

Sioux City, lowa
December 22, 2008
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